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BECOMING LASCELLES
To drive those dreams into reality, he worked hard-

er than most children his age. Between the ages of 9 
to 12, while attending school in Balaclava, in St. Eliz-
abeth, he worked in a family shop after school and 
did his homework by candlelight at nights.

At age 12, he entered Wolmers’ Boy School in Kings-
ton as a second former (eighth grader), armed with his 
undaunted drive and resilience. Upon suffering compli-
cations from a hernia operation and feeling continuous 
physical discomfort at school, he went by himself to the 
Kingston Public Hospital for post-operative appointments 
and, though being able to complete his homework assign-
ments only after working in a shop in the late afternoons, 
came top of his class in second, third and fourth forms.

 As a young man, he learned how to sell successfully 
and build strong relationships with customers and suppli-
ers, qualities which he took with him when he launched 
his own business with savings of £175. He worked long 
hours to sell several products, including Henkel products 
to customers in several parishes. Within a few years, he 
would write the letter that would change the trajectory 
of his life, proposing to the Germany-based multinational 
Henkel that he be appointed their national distributor.

At age 32, Lascelles Chin became the youngest chair-
man and CEO of a Henkel factory, then the globe’s 
largest adhesives manufacturer, and achieved the 
goal of steering Henkel Jamaica to attain the highest 
sales per capita of any Henkel branch in the world.

Still in his thirties, he enjoyed two terms as the results-ori-
ented President of the Jamaica Exporters Association in 
the 1970s. Though national exports underwent a decline 
during that decade, he significantly increased the exports 
of Henkel products to the Caribbean and Latin America. 

Notwithstanding the demands of growing a business 
during the 1980s, Lascelles Chin threw himself enthusiastical-
ly into chairing the Jamaica Industrial Development Corpora-
tion (JIDC), becoming a major player in the team that helped 
25,000 women gain employment in the garment industry.

Whilst chairing JIDC, he founded several business-

es, two of which were LASCO Distributors and LASCO 
Manufacturing. LASCO steadily expanded, as it pro-
duced high quality foods at low prices and offered 
anti-retroviral medication at reduced prices to allow 
poor persons living with HIV to get treatment.

A MIND TO POSITIVITY
Together with LASCO Financial Services founded in 2004, 

these three companies not only rewarded shareholders but 
performed multiple acts of philanthropy though various 
community-inspired programmes. These included awarding 
high-performance teachers, nurses and policemen, supply-
ing numerous scholarships, funding sports programmes, 
supporting environmental protection programmes and 
assisting the development of young entrepreneurs.

Despite his superb achievements, Lascelles Chin under-
went disappointments and formidable challenges. Through 
birdsong, the vibrant colours of flowers and the bountiful 
shades of green on the Jamaican mountains, he recalibrated 
his mind to positivity. He experienced an enormous grat-
itude for life in his 80s, knowing he had attained critically 
important goals, including the thriving LASCO Affiliated 
Companies with the help of his team.  Team LASCO meant a 
great deal to him. No one came around him without being 
positively impacted and Team LASCO remains grateful for 
the valuable lessons they learned from him, including great 
values like honesty, diligence, persistence and hard work.  

A LEGENDARY LIFE
Most of all, Lascelles Chin enjoyed the company of 

friends and family. He leaves behind family, close friends, 
and colleagues who are all inspired by his legendary life. His 
grandchildren provided him with hope, renewed purpose 
and bouts of laughter. His seven children - Karen, Marie, 
Wayne, Andrew (predeceased), Lisa, David and Richard - enjoy 
cherished memories of him as a warm, fun loving and in-
volved father. He is also survived by his greatly beloved wife, 
Dr. Eileen Chin, who supplied the joys of a wonderful family 
life with wisdom, humour, humanity and an abiding love.

Lascelles Chin lived a life worthy of emulation in every re-
spect, for his good works and service to his fellow Jamaicans. 

The Honourable Lascelles Chin, OJ, CD, LLD (Hon. Causa) was an extraordinary child 
who became an extraordinary man. Born on December 5, 1937, he was raised by his wise 
grandmother Mary and kind uncle Dan in Kendal, Manchester. By age eight, he held two 
dreams close to his heart: to escape poverty and improve the lives of his fellow Jamaicans. 

TRIBUTE TO THE HON. LASCELLES CHIN
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OUR MISSION
To provide quality products and services 
to our customers, ensure profitability and 
promote employee development.

Being the best … Always. 

CORE VALUES
CARE FOR OUR CUSTOMERS
We respect our customers time and privacy.

COMMITMENT
We are committed to achieving success for our 
 team, agents and shareholders.

INTEGRITY
In dealing with our customers, agents, staff and shareholders.

Continuous Improvement of our Processes.
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Established in October 1994 as a result of the merger 
between LASCO Foods (Successors) Limited and LASCO 
Foods Limited, LASCO Manufacturing Limited emerged as 

a formidable entity. Subsequently, in October 2010, it success-
fully debuted on the Jamaica Stock Exchange Junior Market.

Renowned as the foremost producer of Nutritious Pow-
dered Beverages in Jamaica, operating under the LASCO Brand, 
LASCO Manufacturing Limited expanded its purview in 2014 
by venturing into the realm of Liquid Refreshing Beverages and 
Water Categories, introducing the highly regarded iCool Brand.

Throughout its existence, the Company has steadfastly 
pursued organic growth, strengthening its position through 
substantial investments in cutting-edge infrastructure, state-
of-the-art technology, and human capital development. These 
strategic endeavours have endowed the organization with the 
necessary capabilities and expertise to drive its expansion, ef-
fectively catering to the mounting demands of both domestic 
and international markets.

TECHNOLOGY AND  
INNOVATION

By perpetually embracing technological advancements 
and fostering innovation in its operational practices, capacity, 
and product portfolio, the Company remains well-equipped to 
confront the ever-evolving business landscape.

Inculcating a culture of continuous improvement, LASCO 
Manufacturing Limited continually strives to enhance oper-
ational efficiencies and adapt to the dynamic currents of the 
industry.

Exemplifying an unwavering commitment to manufacturing 
excellence, the Company upholds stringent quality assurance 
protocols, underpinned by internationally recognized certifi-
cations encompassing Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP), 
Food Safety Management (HACCP), Quality Management Sys-
tems, and Occupational Health and Safety. These certifications 
serve as testaments to our relentless pursuit of uncompromis-
ing standards.

DEDICATION TO JAMAICA
The Company takes immense pride in its steadfast dedica-

tion to the socio-economic development of Jamaica, evident 
through its sustained investments in community initiatives. En-
gaging in educational and social upliftment programs, includ-
ing providing aid to the less fortunate and sponsoring Ambas-
sadorial Programmes, which commend exceptional Jamaican 
teachers, police officers, and nurses, the organization remains 
firmly committed to fostering progress within our society.

ABOUT LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

FEBruary 4, 1993: LASCO Whole milk comes to market - Aimed at the 
budget conscious consumer, and those that do not have refrigerators.

Kingston Gleaner, February 05, 1993,Pg. 3, Kingston, Kingston, JM

https://newspaperarchive.com/kingston-gleaner-feb-05-1993-p-3/
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1. Audited Accounts 

To receive the audited accounts for the year ended 
March 31, 2023, consider, and if thought fit, pass the 
following resolution:

“THAT the Audited Accounts for the year ended 
March 31, 2023, and the Reports of the Directors 
and Auditors, circulated with the notice convening 
the meeting be and are hereby adopted.” 

2. Ratification of Dividend

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following 
resolution:

“THAT the Interim Dividend of $0.10 per stock unit 
paid on June 29, 2022, to shareholders on record at 
the close of business on June 10, 2022, be declared 
final for the year 2022.” 

3. Election of Directors

Article 97 of the Company’s Articles of Incorpora-
tion provides that one-third of the Directors, if their 
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), 
the number nearest one-third (1/3), shall retire from 
office at each Annual General Meeting.  

Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Incorpora-
tion provides that the Directors to retire in every 
year shall be those who have been longest in office 
since their last election. 

The Directors retiring under these Articles are Prof. 
Rosalea Hamilton and Mr. Compton Rodney and 
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The proposed resolutions are therefore as follows:

To consider and if thought fit pass the following 
resolution:

(i) “THAT retiring Director Prof. Rosalea Hamilton be 
and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.”

To consider and if thought fit pass the following 
resolution: 

(ii) “THAT retiring Director, Mr. Compton Rodney, be 
and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

4. Directors Remuneration 

Article 82 of the Articles of Incorporation 
empowers the Directors or any appropriate 
Committee of the Board of Directors to fix the 
remuneration of the Directors, thus:

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following 
resolution:

“THAT, the remuneration of the Directors be fixed 
by the Compensation Committee of the Board.”

Article 123 empowers the Directors, or any appro-
priate Committee of the Board of Directors, to fix 
the remuneration of the Managing Director, thus:

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following 
resolution:

“THAT, the remuneration of the Managing Director 
be fixed by the Compensation Committee of the 
Board.”

5. Remuneration of Auditors  

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following ordinary resolution:

“THAT the remuneration of the Auditors, BDO, be fixed by the Directors of the Company.”

Dated this 28th day of June, 2023

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

Vincent A. Chen 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

NOTICE OF 13TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Kingston Gleaner, June 09, 1997,Pg. 19, Kingston, Kingston, JMhttps://newspaperarchive.com/kingston-gleaner-jun-09-1997-p-19/

1997: LASCO already 
controls up to 90% of the 
local market for powdered 
milk. It exports extensively  
to Caricom, is now making 
inroads into latin and 
central america...

NOTES: 

1.  A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this 
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons as his/
her Proxy to attend in person or remotely and vote in his/
her stead.  A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

2.  All Members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

3.  Enclosed is a form of Proxy which must be deposited with 
the Secretary at the registered office of the Company not 
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding 
the meeting or to the Registrar and Transfer Agent, 
Jamaica Central Securities Depository, 40 Harbour 
Street, Kingston.

4.  Further information on how to participate in this 
meeting is available on the Company’s website at  
www.LASCOjamaica.com

Ordinary Resolutions 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of LASCO Manufacturing Limited will 
be held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023, at 11:00 a.m., in the Montego Suite of the Jamaica Pegasus Hotel, 
81 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5 and via electronic means which can be accessed at  
www.LASCOjamaica.com. This meeting is called to consider and pass resolutions set out hereunder: 

http://www.lascojamaica.com
http://www.lascojamaica.com
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REGISTERED OFFICE
LASCO Manufacturing Limited
27 Red Hills Road
Kingston 10
Jamaica, W.I.
Tel:  (876) 960-1831
       (876) 960-3662-3
Fax: (876) 749-4275
Website: www.LASCOjamaica.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:
Hon. Lascelles A. Chin, OJ, CD, LLD. 
(Hon. Causa)
Executive Chairman

Mr. James Rawle, CD
Deputy Executive Chairman, 
Managing Director

Non-Executive Directors:
Rosalea Hamilton, BA. (Hons.) MIA, 
LLB (Hons.), CLE, PhD.
Mr.  Vincent A. Chen
Mrs. Jacinth Hall-Tracey, MBA, BA 
(Hons)
Dr. Eileen Chin, MBA
Mr. Compton Rodney, BSc (Econ) 
FCA, FCCA
Mr. Noel daCosta, CD, BSc, MSc, MBA, 
FCII, DTech

Financial Controller:
Ms. Sophia Gayle, FCA, FCCA

Company Secretary:
Mr. Vincent A. Chen

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW
Chen, Green and Company
6 Haining Road
Kingston 5
Jamaica, West Indies

BANKERS
CIBC First Caribbean 
International Bank
Jamaica Limited
23-27 Knutsford Boulevard
Kingston 5
Jamaica, West Indies

AUDITORS
BDO
26 -28 Beechwood Avenue
Kingston 5
Jamaica, West Indies

REGISTRAR AND  
TRANSFER AGENTS
Jamaica Central Securities 
Depository Limited
40 Harbour Street
Kingston
Jamaica, West Indies

CORPORATE DATA SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

NAMES 	 UNITS 	 PERCENTAGES
East West (St. Lucia) Limited 	 2,002,693,780	 48.45
Lascelles A. Chin 	 1,244,428,470	 30.11
National Insurance Fund	 103,794,541	 2.51
Mayberry Jamaican Equities Limited 	                  34,896,518	 0.84
Sagicor Select Fund Ltd. – (‘Class C’ Shares) Manufacturing & Distribution	 32,816,914	 0.79
SJIML A/C 3119	 31,777,000	 0.76
Joel Izquierdo Gonzalez	 21,652,392	 0.52
Luidmila Gonzalez Diaz	 21,621,259	 0.52
Hilda Gonzalez Rosales	 21,000,000	 0.50
Wayne M. Chin	 19,867,160	                         0.48

NAMES 	 POSITION 	 UNITS 	 PERCENTAGES
	 *CONNECTED PARTIES
Lascelles Chin	  	           1,244,428,470	 30.11
	 *East West (St. Lucia) Limited	          2,002,693,780	 48.45
	 *Eileen Chin – Direct	     { 17,000,000 }	 0.41
Rosalea Hamilton		  110,000	 0.00
Eileen Chin	   	                17,000,000	 0.41
	 *Lascelles Chin - Direct 	  { 1,244,428,470}	 30.11
Jacinth Hall-Tracey		                          0.00	 0.00
Vincent Chen		                               0.00	 0.00
Compton Rodney		                               0.00	 0.00
Noel daCosta		                           30,000	 0.00
James Rawle		                               0.00	 0.00

NAMES 	 POSITION 	 UNITS 	 PERCENTAGES
	 *CONNECTED PARTIES
James Rawle	   	       0.00	  0.00
Sophia Gayle	  	       0.00	  0.00
Lisa Watts		       194,100	  0.00
Cleverick Doughorty		        0.00	  0.00
Daniel Strachan		        0.00	  0.00
Errol Grant		        0.00	  0.00
Jean Grant		        0.00	  0.00

TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS as at March 31, 2023

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PARTIES  as at March 31, 2023

SHAREHOLDINGS OF SENIOR MANAGERS AND CONNECTED PARTIES   as at March 31, 2023

*Connected Party

http://www.lascojamaica.com
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FINANCIAL STATISTICS	 2022-23	 2021-22	 2020-21	 2019-20	 2018-19
	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000	 $’000

REVENUE	 11,242,598	  9,481,244 	  8,218,152 	  7,886,142 	  7,565,672 
Percentage change	 18.6%	 15.4%	 4.2%	 4.2%	 13.6%

GROSS PROFIT	 4,086,629	  3,484,174 	  3,114,074 	  2,917,394 	  2,679,366 

GROSS MARGIN	 36.3%	 36.7%	 37.9%	 37.0%	 35.4%

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS	 2,689,200	  2,223,058 	  1,814,999 	  1,292,405 	  1,257,879 
Percentage change	 21.0%	 22.5%	 40.4%	 2.7%	 46.0%

NET CASHFLOWS FROM	  
OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 1,886,873	  1,513,910 	  1,427,643 	  1,469,793 	  1,817,273 
Percentage change	 24.6%	 6.0%	 -2.9%	 -19.1%	 438.9%

FINANCE COSTS	 23,060	  47,220 	  59,186 	  93,615 	  107,426 
Percentage change	 -51.2%	 -20.2%	 -36.8%	 -12.9%	 -18.7%

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION	 2,666,140	  2,175,838 	  1,755,813 	  1,198,790 	  1,150,453 
Percentage change	 22.5%	 23.9%	 46.5%	 4.2%	 57.8%

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION	 2,081,897	  1,707,485 	  1,379,636 	  981,677 	  1,076,779 
Percentage change	 21.9%	 23.8%	 40.5%	 -8.8%	 92.1%

DIVIDENDS PAID	  413,291 	  300,049 	  250,746 	  249,970 	  155,464 
Percentage change	 37.7%	 19.7%	 0.3%	 60.8%	 8.7%

LONG TERM DEBT	 157,180	  364,567 	  819,170 	  1,044,925 	  1,395,686 
Percentage change	 -56.9%	 -55.5%	 -21.6%	 -25.1%	 10.6%

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY	 11,097,794	  9,348,267 	  7,911,282 	  6,751,065 	  5,845,814 
Percentage change	 18.7%	 18.2%	 17.2%	 15.5%	 18.7%

RETURN ON ASSETS	 16.1%	 14.9%	 13.4%	 10.6%	 13.0%
					   
RETURN ON EQUITY	 20.4%	 19.8%	 18.8%	 15.6%	 20.0%
					   
RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL 	 23.2%	 22.6%	 20.9%	 16.5%	 18.7%
					   
OPERATING EXPENSES	 1,482,641	  1,293,335 	  1,323,712 	  1,655,005 	  1,423,323 
Operating expenses as a % of Sales	 13.2%	 13.6%	 16%	 21%	 19%

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

TURNOVER NET PROFIT SALES GROWTH NET PROFIT MARGIN EARNINGS PER SHARE DIVIDENDS RETURN ON EQUITY PROPOSED DIVIDENDS 
PER SHARE INCREASE

2021/22: $J 9.48B 2021/22: $J 1.71B 2021/22: 15.4% 2021/22: 18.0% 2021/22: $0.41 2022/23: $J 413M 
*Proposed

2021/22: 19.8% 2021/22: 38%	

$J11.24B $J2.08B 18.6%	 18.5% $0.50 $J496M* 20.4% 20%

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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The Directors of LASCO Manufacturing Limited (the Company) are pleased to present their report for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 	  $’000

Profit before Taxation 	 2,666,140	    		
Taxation	 ( 584,243 )
Net Profit	 2,081,897				  

Earnings per ordinary stock unit (Cents per share)	 50.37 cents
	
Details of the results for the year were approved by the Board on May 26, 2023 and a comparison with the previous 
year is set out in the Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income on Page 68.  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIVIDENDS
On June 29, 2022, the Company paid an interim 

dividend of $0.10 per share to all Shareholders on record, 
as at June 10, 2022.  No further dividend was paid in 
respect of the year under review.

DIRECTORS
Articles 97 and 98 of the Articles of Incorporation 

of the Company provide for the rotation of directors 
at the Annual General Meeting.  The Directors retiring 
under these Articles are Prof. Rosalea Hamilton and Mr. 
Compton Rodney and being eligible offer themselves for 
re-election.

Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Incorpora-
tion of the Company, the Managing Director while hold-
ing office shall not be subject to retirement by rotation.  
The Managing Director, who is subject to this Article, is 
Mr. James E. D. Rawle.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On May 27, 2023, our Executive Chairman Honourable 

Lascelles Chin OJ, CD, LLD (Hon Causa) passed away.  His 
achievements which went beyond his entrepreneurship 
will long be etched in our memories.  We are heartened 
by the fact that our former Chairman impacted so many 
lives, leaving a lasting and irreplaceable legacy.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN
On June 15, 2023, Mr. James E.D. Rawle, CD was 

elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of LASCO 
Manufacturing Limited. Mr. Rawle will function in the 
position of Executive Chairman also, and has assumed 
the responsibilities of the late, Executive Chairman, Hon. 
Lascelles Chin.

Mr. Rawle will continue as Managing Director of LML 
and in regard to that Company he will perform the dual 
roles of the Executive Chairman and the Managing 
Director.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank employ-
ees for their continued commitment and loyalty to the 
Company, and to our customers, distributors, and suppli-
ers for your support throughout the year.

Dated this 28th day of June, 2023
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

Vincent A. Chen
COMPANY SECRETARY

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE YEAR INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

•  Sales Revenue increased 18.6% to $11.24B (2022: $9.48B) with gross 
profit growing to $4.09B or 17% above the prior year. 

•  Gross profit margin however slipped 40 basis points to 36.3 % due to 
cost increases that were not fully recovered through pricing or savings. 
The increase in revenue was entirely organic, fuelled by volume growth 
and pricing, and reflects the resilience and relevance of our brands. 

•	 Administrative and Selling Expenses were $1.48B or an increase of 
14.6% with respect to the prior year. The increase reflects cost pressures 
but notably the percentage increase was held below the revenue growth. 

• Marketing investments grew by 16% as we increased the support for 
the brands and consumer engagement. The expense to sales ratio was 
13.2% versus 13.6% in the prior year, benefiting from disciplined cost 
control.

•	 Operating Profit grew 21% to $2.69B on the previous year with the 
operating profit margin increasing by 50 basis points to 23.9%

•	 Net Profit was $2.082B or 21.9% above the prior year (2022: $1.707B) 
with net margin increasing 50 basis points to 18.5%.

•	Our Balance Sheet remained healthy. Total assets at year-end were 
$13.7B, an increase of 14% over the prior year. Current assets were 
$8.58B with current liabilities being $1.77B. Shareholders equity grew 
18.7% to $11.1B. 

•	  Earnings per stock unit increased by 21.9% to $0.50 (2022: $0.41). 

•	 Return on equity improved to 20.4%, up from 19.8% in the previous year 
while return on invested capital increased to 23.2%.

•	An interim dividend of $0.10 per share totalling $413.3M was paid to 
shareholders on 29th June 2022.

Despite the challenges of extreme 
material cost inflation and lin-
gering Supply Chain instability, 

LASCO Manufacturing delivered solid 
top and bottom-line results for the year 
ended March 31, 2023. These results 
were in line with our expectations and 
again validated our long-term value 
creation strategies. At the same time, 
we continued to increase investments in 
Brand and marketing support, research 
and development and technology to 
ensure continued long term sustainable 
profitable growth.   

The inflationary pressures forced us 
to adjust selling prices, but the extent of 
increases was significantly tempered by 
savings from important and on-going 
gains in operational efficiencies and dis-
ciplined cost management, as we sought 
to maintain consumer affordability and 
accessibility of the brands.

The results, under challenging condi-
tions, reflect our commitment to contin-
uously improve operational efficiency 
and effectiveness at all levels of the 
company. Key elements included re-en-
gineering of critical processes and activi-
ties with digital support and automation, 
waste, and manufacturing loss reduction, 
consistently achieving first time quality 
and organizational simplification to drive 
agility and flexibility. These initiatives 
were underpinned by significant invest-
ments in brand and marketing support, 
training, and human resource develop-
ment. The continued commitment, dedi-
cation, and application of our teams at all 
levels of the organization were pivotal to 
the results.

Mr. James Rawle, CD
Deputy Executive Chairman,  

Managing Director

MESSAGE FROM 
THE DEPUTY 
EXECUTIVE 
CHAIRMAN
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STRONG COMMITMENT
As in previous years, we maintained our strong 

commitment to the responsible use of natural resources 
and to minimising potential negative impacts of our 
operations on the natural environment and made good 
progress on our sustainability goals: 

•	 In the area water management and conservation 
(water stewardship), we realised significant reduc-
tion in non-product water usage. Bottled water and 
refreshing beverages are major and growing segments 
of our product portfolio. We also achieved savings in 
variable electricity consumption reflecting improved 
manufacturing efficiency and the implementation of 
various eco-efficiency measures.  
Our renewable energy project (solar), after several 
delays due to supply chain issues, is slated for comple-
tion by December 2023 and when commissioned will 
result in a major reduction in our carbon footprint.

•	 We maintained our engagement with Recycling 
Partners Jamaica (RPJ) in funding, along with several 
bottling industry participants, the recovery of plastic 
bottles (PET&HDPE) from the environment for recy-
cling. The initiative is in its fourth year and continues 
to make steady progress.

•	We continued to fund the REAP (Relief Environ-
mental Awareness Programme) which focuses on 
environmental education in primary schools. Activi-
ties under the programme include general environ-
mental sensitization, tree planting, collection of PET 
bottles from the school environment for recycling 
and school gardens.

Throughout the year we continued to execute our 
CSR programmes with core programmes being recogni-
tion and Awards for Public Sector professionals, namely 
for Nurses (Health care) and Educators (Education). In 
addition, we continued our several social outreach pro-
grammes to communities across the country.

• www.jamaica-gleaner.com  •       gleanerjamaica   •        jamaicagleaner  • NEWS
THE GLEANER, TUESDAY, AUGUST 11, 2015 
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ON TUESDAY, July 28, Lascelles Chin received

the Medal of Distinction from the International

Federation of Consular Associations (FICAC),

also known as the World Federation of Consuls.

With more than 25 years at the helm of LASCO

Distributors and some five decades in business,

Lascelles Chin, founder and executive chairman

of the LASCO Affiliated Companies, continues to

be recognised for his outstanding contribution to

the Jamaican economic landscape.
At a ceremony at the new dry blend and liquid

manufacturing plants of LASCO Manufacturing

Limited in White Marl, Spanish Town, the medal

was presented by FICAC president Honourable

Arnold Foote before an audience of notable

ambassadors and dignitaries.
Among those present were Robert Ready –

Canadian High Commissioner, Shri Pratap Singh

– Indian High Commissioner, Patricia Foote,

Kenneth Benjamin – founder and executive chair-

man of the Guardsman Group of Companies, Julie

Sutherland – representative from the British High

Commission, Sonja Sutherland – executive assis-

tant to the chairman of the Guardsman Group, and

Peter Hillarie – general manager of The Jamaica

Pegasus hotel.
Foote noted that, “One of the most important

functions of a consul is the development of trade,

and the FICAC recognises that Chin has built a

brand and a business that are ingrained in the

DNA of Jamaicans everywhere.”
“His commitment to providing quality, afford-

able products to Jamaican families has seen

LASCO’s manufacturing and distribution of more

than 3,000 products along a wide spectrum of cat-

egories, including but not limited to beverages,

cereals, canned foods, condiments, baby products,

personal care, pharmaceuticals and household

products,” Foote highlighted.
The prestige of such recognition was not lost on

Chin. With more than 90 countries and 18,000

individual consuls as members, the FICAC, which

was established in 1982, is the oldest institution

serving international bilateral relations. Chin,

whose business distributes products not only in

Jamaica and the wider Caribbean, but also in the

USA, Canada, United Kingdom and Central

America, gave his guests a tour of the new and

expanding facilities of his operations.

OTHER AWARDS
This recognition follows honours and awards

that Chin has received from the Jamaica Chamber

of Commerce, the Roche Quality Awards and the

AMCHAM Jamaica Awards of Excellence for

Corporate Social Responsibility, in addition to

induction into the PSOJ’s Hall of Fame and other

recognition and salutations for his entrepreneurial

efforts, business acumen and local outreach

efforts.
From his humble beginnings in rural Jamaica to

once being Jamaica’s largest trader of black pep-

per, to being named Jamaica’s Most Admired

Business Leader, Chin has blazed a trail for the

past 50 years with no signs of slowing down.

In his expression of gratitude, Chin revealed

that the company was in a rapid state of growth,

with no signs of slowing down. With the new

manufacturing facilities and major upgrading of

the warehouse at the White Marl location and the

launch of LASCO’s latest product, iCool, the

company is poised for even greater heights.

CONTRIBUTED 

Honourable Arnold Foote (left), president of the World Federation of Consuls, confers the

International Federation of Consular Associations (FICAC) Medal of Distinction on the

Honourable Lascelles Chin, founder and executive chairman of LASCO Affiliated

Companies, on Tuesday, July 28, at the LASCO White Marl facility.

Lascelles Chin gets
medal of distinction

THE ‘GROW with Hi-Pro’ prod-
uct launch at the Denbigh
Agricultural, Industrial and Food

Show on Saturday, August 1, featured a

new creative twist. Five new chemical

and veterinary pharmaceutical product

portfolios – designed to improve farm-

ers’ profitability – were introduced to

the local market, following which con-

testants from the 2015 National Farm

Queen competition showcased the vari-

ous brands as costumes.
Miss Westmoreland Parish Queen,

Amanda Garrison, modelled BASF – a

world-leading manufacturer of agro-

chemicals. The farm queen sauntered

down the walkway of the ‘Grow with

Hi Pro’ village holding a super-size

Zampro bottle. Zampro is the latest

fungicide from BASF which is formu-

lated to protect melons, peppers, toma-

toes and potatoes from late blight and

downy mildew.
Diana Kay, who wore the sash of

Miss St Catherine, showcased a purple

outfit in tribute to the Celmanax brand,

manufactured by Arm & Hammer

Animal Health Limited. Celmanax is

an all-natural yeast-based ingredient

that is only found in Hi-Pro’s major

feeds, and Hi-Provit, the number one

selling poultry vitamin.
Having received rave reviews from

farmers who have seen improved herd

health and growth rates since

Celmanax was added to Hi-Pro Feeds,

the company anticipates a similarly

positive response to Celmanax in 

Hi-Provit.
Miss St James, Denescia Kellier’s

costume had an agronomy focus, in

keeping with the high-quality generic

herbicides, insecticides and fungicides

from Agri-Centre. Her outfit portrayed

a healthy, green leafy vegetable that

has been treated with the Agri-Centre

solutions distributed by Hi-Pro.
Christina Williams, Miss Portland,

dressed as Norbrook Labs’ trademark

bull, handed out miniature black rubber

bulls to a large gathering of Hi-Pro cus-

tomers. Norbook Labs is a global leader

in the development of cutting edge vet-

erinary and animal health medicine, and

a wide selection of these products are

available at Hi-Pro Farm Supplies.

WAR ON PESTS, DISEASES

To depict the war that Marketing

Arm International is waging against

pests and diseases that threaten a wide

range of crops, Tanyalee Paul, Miss

Clarendon, was dressed as a warrior,

with ‘armour’ and ‘shield’. Marketing

Arm International creates organic envi-

ronmentally friendly products to pro-

tect crops, including melon, cabbage,

squash cucumber, pepper, papaya,

onion and celery from a variety of

insects and pests.
Paying tribute to the innovations of

the Hi-Pro brand, Derrick Kellier, min-

ister of agriculture and fisheries, con-

gratulated the Jamaica Broilers Group

for bringing new products to the local

farming community to enable them to

be sustainable and profitable. In addi-

tion, he thanked Hi-Pro for contribut-

ing $20 million to the staging of

Denbigh 2015.
Also participating in the product

launch was Christopher Levy, president

and CEO of the Jamaica Broilers

Group.

CONTRIBUTED 

From left: Tanyalee Paul, Miss Clarendon, represents Marketing Arm International; Christina Williams, Miss Portland, portrays the trademark bull of Norbook Labs; Amanda Garrison,

Miss Westmoreland, depicts BASF, Diana Kay (second right), Miss St Catherine, wears the Celmanax brand, while Denescia Kellier (right), Miss St James, shows off the Agri-Centre

look.

Hi-Pro hosts creative 
product launch at Denbigh

        

“A good head and a good heart are a
lways a

formidable combination.”

T
HIS NELSON Mandela quotation aptly

describes the 2011 entrant into the

PSOJ Hall of Fame – the Honourable

Lascelles Agustas Chin, one of Jamaica

and the Caribbean’s most respected

leaders, entrepreneur par excellence 
and

outstanding philanthropist. His pheno
menal

journey is testament to the struggles against

overwhelming odds and his legendary

perseverance. Indeed, Lascelles Chin h
as

shattered the myth that successful leaders,

especially successful business leaders
, are

privileged.
The son of a humble Jamaican shopkeeper

and a housewife, who had migrated from

Hong Kong to live in Jamaica, Las Chin’s life

is undoubtedly the evidence of vict
ory over

adversity. The young Chin attended

Wolmer’s School in Kingston, armed with the

tenacity that he would not allow his
 acute

financial challenges to hinder his ac
ademic

progress.
Lascelles Chin entered the world of tr

ade and

commerce by default. While growing up, he

had his sights set on a career as an ag
ricultural

chemist. However, being the man who always

seizes and maximises opportunities, the young

Chin moved from a job as a lab technician at

the University of the West Indies, to o
ne as a

salesman, selling chemicals, hardware items

and black pepper.

Unable to garner equity financing, or 
afford

a commercial location, Las Chin began his sale
s

business in 1962 with only £175, ope
rating out

of a rented section of a house  which
 he

shared with his family in Havendale, St Andrew.

This marked a bold step for him into the global

trade, with imports of black pepper from the

Far East and peas from Portugal and the

United States.

He went on to become Jamaica’s largest

trader in black pepper, while develop
ing sales

of adhesives and other items for the hardware

trade. In 1965, he was not deterred, o
n

learning of a plan by the authorities t
o

establish an adhesive plant in Jamaica, or by

Government’s inevitable restriction on the

quantity of such products that he wo
uld be

able to import. Instead, he saw this as a

decisive business opportunity and

successfully convinced the German company,

Henkel, to enter into a partnership wi
th him.

Astonishingly, as chairman and managing

director of the company’s Jamaican

operation, the Jamaican market became the

highest per capita user of Henkel adh
esives

worldwide!
His entrepreneurial and pioneering sp

irit

has been demonstrated in a variety of sectors

including furniture manufacturing, data

processing, car rentals, horticulture,

insurance brokerage, financial service
s,

distribution of hair products, soya-oil 
refining

and chicken processing.

No wonder then, that all his business

acumen and expertise were brought to bea
r

on the successful establishment of the LASCO

Affiliated Companies in 1988. The group now

manufactures and distributes more than 300

products with the LASCO brand name, as well

as providing financial services. Never

forgetting his humble beginnings, Lascelles

Chin has made LASCO products affordable,

while simultaneously investing in extensive

research to ensure the highest quality
. The

group enjoys strong brand loyalty in J
amaica

as well as in the regions to which it ex
ports –

the Caribbean, Canada, Central America,

United States and the United Kingdom
.

September 2010 saw the LASCO Affiliated

Companies, under the guidance of the

Honourable Lascelles Chin, leveraging
 their

business efforts to enable ordinary Ja
maicans

to become shareholders through an Initial

Public Offering. He took a historic and
 novel

move, insisting that shares be reserved 
for

senior citizens who are a part of the

Caribbean Community of Retired Persons

(CCRP), teachers, nurses and police.

In October 2010, LASCO raised yet ano
ther

bar in business and commerce when it

THE GLEANER, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2011   |  SPECIAL ADVERTISING FEATURE

D2

PLEASE SEE CITATION, D5

FILE

Lascelles Chin (left) accepts his citation from Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica president, Joseph

Matalon.

Lascelles A. Chin, OJ, CD

ENTREPRENEUR
PAR EXCELLENCE

August
2015:

Hon. Lascelles A. Chin, OJ, CD, LLD. (Hon. Causa)
Executive Chairman

Recipient of the Order of Jamaica for his philanthropy 
and contribution to the development of commerce and 
business, Lascelles A. Chin is the Executive Chairman of LASCO 
Manufacturing Limited, LASCO Distributors Limited and LASCO 
Financial Services Limited.

 This Jamaican born entrepreneur who ventured in to the field of 
business and commerce over 50 years ago, found opportunities in 
a variety of sectors; the import of spices and teas, sale of adhesives 
through his partnership with Henkel, furniture manufacturing, 
data processing, car rental, horticulture, insurance brokerage, hair 
products, soya oil refining and chicken processing.  As a result of 
his wealth of knowledge, business experience and always being 
mindful of his humble beginnings, the Chairman has constantly 
sought to develop and distribute affordable products.

He shares his ideas and energy with business colleagues and 
has contributed to prominent Jamaican organization such as 
the Jamaica Industrial Development Corporation, The Jamaica 
Exporter’s Association and the Jamaica Promotions Corporation 
(JAMPRO).  He is a Director of the University of the West Indies’ 
School of Nursing Advisory Board and the Kings House Foundation.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RECOGNITION AND AWARDS

The company was declared the winner of the Best Annual Report 
award for 21/22 (Junior Market) at the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) 
Corporate Governance Awards ceremony. We were also awarded a 
CGI Rating of A (CGI Rating Score: 81.44). This assessment was con-
ducted by the JSE through the Corporate Governance Index Review 
Committee, the independent body with responsibility to measure 
how well a company conforms to the various principles of Corporate 
Governance.

Our Board of Directors continued to be proactive and fully 
engaged providing guidance on overall strategic direction and 
business performance, corporate governance, audit, and risk man-
agement. Board evaluation and training were completed during 
the year. Areas of training included Corporate Governance, Data 
Protection, and introductory workshops on Environmental, Social 
and Governance (ESG) principles.

REMAIN FOCUSED, AGILE
We responded to the numerous challenges and delivered a 

strong set of results while we continued to invest in our long-term 
growth drivers. The year ahead will be no less challenging. We 
anticipate that cost pressures will persist for the medium term 
because of global macro-economic instability and geopolitical 
tensions could lead to renewed supply chain instability. As, we 
have done in the past, we will remain focused, agile, and prudent 
in executing our plans and take the necessary measures to miti-
gate potential negative impacts on the business with the constant 
objective of delivering superior business performance. 

We are committed to carrying the momentum that we have de-
veloped into 2023/2024 and thereby continue to create sustained 
value for all our stakeholders. We thank our employees for their 
exemplary commitment and hard work. We also thank you, our 
shareholders, for your support, confidence, and trust. 

Mr. James Rawle, CD
Deputy Executive Chairman,  Managing Director
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James E. D. Rawle, CD
Deputy Executive Chairman

Mr. James E.D. Rawle is the Deputy Executive 
Chairman of LASCO Manufacturing Limited and LASCO 
Distributors Limited. He is also the Managing Director 
of LASCO Manufacturing Limited and sits on the Board 
of LASCO Financial Services Limited. He did undergrad-
uate studies in Natural Sciences at the University of the 
West Indies, from which he also holds the Master of 
Science degree in Organic Chemistry. He brings to the 
Board a wealth of knowledge and experience, having 
served in various senior managerial positions, at one of 
the leading multinational food companies in the world 
for over 41 years. His extensive training in Organic 
Chemistry has been the base for his far-reaching work 
in manufacturing, new product research and develop-
ment, as well as production and plant management.  
He also has extensive functional experience in brand 
management, sales, marketing, finance and strategy 
formulation and execution.

Mr. Rawle has been past Chairman of several Public 
entities, including The Board of the Bureau of Stan-
dards, The Scientific Research Council, The Natural 
Resources Conservation Authority, The Environmental 
Foundation of Jamaica, Nutrition Products Limited and 
The Cocoa Industry Board.   

2016 
• Recipient of Honorary Doctor 

of Humane Letters Degree 
(DHL) from Northern Caribbean 
University

• Recipient of Lifetime Achievement 
Award, American Chamber of 
Commerce

• Recipient of the International 
Achievement “Peacock Award” 
from the American Friends of 
Jamaica in Miami, Florida.  

• Appointment as a Director of 
Bureau of Standards Jamaica 

2015
• Recipient of Honorary Doctor 

of Laws Degree (LLD) from the 
University of Technology Jamaica 

• Recipient of the International 
Federation Association of Consuls      
(FICAC) Medal of Distinction 
Award

2013
• Named MoneyGram Brand 
Ambassador for Jamaica

2011
• Inducted in the Private Sector of 
Jamaica’s Hall of Fame 

2009
• Recipient of Inaugural CVM 
People’s Award

2008
• Most Admired Business Leader

2005
• Recipient of American Foundation 

for UWI Award for Outstanding 
Contribution to Business in the 
Caribbean & as a Caribbean 
Luminary

2004
•  Recipient of Florida International 

University (FIU) Business Leader 
Award

2002
• Recipient of The Agri-Business 

Award from the American 

Soybean Association, for active 
involvement in the Soybean 

Industry.  This award    has only 
been won by multinational 
companies such as Dupont, 
Monsanto and Dow, Bayer, Ciba 
Geigy, Zeneca

2001
• Received the 4th highest civilian 

Jamaican recognition, the 
Order of Jamaica, in 2001 for his 
philanthropy and his contribution 
to the development of commerce/
business 

1986
• Conferred with the Honour of 

the Order of Distinction in the 
rank of Commander Class for 
outstanding services to Industry 
and Commerce
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CARIBBEAN EXPORT Development Agencyis offering European Union-funded aid of up  to$3.6 million per applicant for food exporterswho need help improving food-safety standards.The money is sourced from the 10thEuropean Development Fund (EDF) underwhich Caribbean Export, a regional trade andinvestment promotion agency, is responsible forexecuting a Regional Private SectorDevelopment Programme (RPSDP).
Sonia Bowen, Caribbean Export programmerin Christchurch, Barbados, says companies willhave to spend first in order to qualify for theEU’s free cash, which is intended to defrayexpenses attached to overhauling productionsystems and supply networks.

“It is not a loan. It is reimbursable grants.They will have to spend first before they can getthe money,” Bowen said on Friday.
Businesses are being offered grant of �5,000to �30,000. Caribbean Export is collaboratingwith JAMPRO and Jamaica Exporters’Association on the programme.
Bowen said the amount is calculated as 70 percent of total spend.

To qualify for the maximum euro30,000grant, the business would have had to spend� 42,000 to � 43,000 of its own money. Thegrant is treated as a reimbursement.
Caribbean Export advised exporters of theprogramme in Kingston at the October 26-27launch of the �500,000 Special AssistanceProgramme for food exporters, funded by theEuropean Union. Businesses can access �5,000under the special assistance programme; applica-tions for more funds up to the cap would bemade under the Direct Assistance Grant Scheme.

NEW US LAW
The key objective is to equip affected produc-ers with the right tools to respond to new leg-islative requirements of the US Food Safety andModernization Act, which take effect January 1,2012.

Jamaica estimates that of the 200 food exportingcompanies the law will affect, 80 per cent or 160of them are below the required standard, prompt-ing calls back in July by the exporters associationfor the Government to bail out its members.Bowen said each application would have to

be reviewed and approved, and that the require-ments were outlined at www.carib-export.com.The company must be legally registered, andmust “also be exporting or demonstrate theirpotential to export goods and services and be operational for at least two years supported by the last two years’ financial state-ments/accounts. They must finance and sustaintheir projects fully at the beginning,” it said onthe website.
Companies which will not be eligible includestart-ups, firms, entities or individuals not finan-cially operational for two years; educational insti-tutions such as universities, schools, vocationalcentres and non-governmental organisations.“No direct assistance may exceed 70 per cent(30,000) of the total project cost. The projectmust be financed from the applicant’s or theirpartners’ own resources, or from other fundingsources, including the donor community,” asstated on the website.

Caribbean Export is an agency serving themembers of CARIFORUM.

austanny@yahoo.com

Marcella Scarlett
Business Reporter

LASCELLES CHIN spent
two decades building a com-
pany into what is now a

household name and brand in
Jamaica, offering food and phar-maceuticals products.

Chin, however, waded into theunpredictable waters of Jamaicanbusiness long before that. At thestart of the 1960s, he launchedNational Trading Company.
He pursued various other ven-tures over time until 1986 when hefounded Lasco – now one ofJamaica’s most well-known manu-facturing and distribution opera-tions. Lasco is also a provider offinancial services.

Last year, Chin separated thegroup operation into three entities,each of which was floated on thejunior stock exchange – marking anew stage in the group’s evolutionas a public company.
The listing expanded Lasco’sownership base and gave Chin cap-ital to do even bigger things.
Corporate Jamaica, already wellfamiliar with Chin’s accomplish-ments, decided that since he hadgone public, so could they. It wastime to acknowledge his contribu-tion to business more publicly.

Last Thursday night, Chin

became the 19th Jamaican business
titan to be inducted into the PSOJ
Hall of Fame. He used the occasion
to announce to investors that the
big investment he is making in his
manufacturing operation in St
Catherine would be even bigger.

The factory upgrade at Lasco
Manufacturing Limited (LML) is
now going to be a US$16-million
($1.4b) project, he said, up from
US$11 million ($946m).

“It is a long, interesting and
rewarding journey for me to be
here this evening. I would not have
it any other way,” said Chin, as he
was inducted into the PSOJ Hall of
Fame.

FIRST BUSINESS VENTURE
Chin reflected on how, with

£175, he started his first business
venture, National Trading, in 1961
in a rented half-side of a house in
Havendale, St Andrew, which he
shared with his family. His other
business exploits have spanned
various sectors until he eventually
founded Lasco.

The Lasco Manufacturing proj-
ect will expand the factory from
100,000 square feet to 240,000
square feet, allowing for the addi-
tion of 10 product lines atop the
300 already made there. LML proj-
ects that sales will climb to $6 bil-

lion by 2014 as a result.
Managing Director Eileen Chin

says the project will be financed
from the business’ cash flows and
through borrowings.

The first phase of the project isto start in mid-November and endby April or May 2012, Eileen Chintold Sunday Business.
“This expansion will see theaddition of factory facilities tomake products that other manufac-turers are making for us,” she said.
Lasco is the first company tohave three affiliates listed on theJamaica Stock Exchange. Thecompanies went public inSeptember 2010.
“No matter how small a shot youthink you have, take it, move on and persevere,” said Chin in his encouragement to young entrepreneurs.
His other peers in the PSOJ Hallof Fame are Carlton Alexander,Paul Geddes, Desmond Blades,Mayer Matalon, Rafael Diaz,Gordon ‘Butch’ Stewart, RabyDanvers Williams, Oliver Clarke,John Issa, Maurice Facey, KarlHendrickson, Douglas Orane, DrMarshall Hall, William ‘Billy’McConnell, Dennis Lalor, CharlesJohnston, Christopher Blackwelland Robert Levy.

marcella.scarlett@gleanerjm.com

COLIN HAMILTON/FREELANCE PHOTOGRAPHERLascelles Chin and Eileen Chin at the PSOJ Hall of Fame cere-mony, at the Wyndham Kingston hotel, New Kingston, onThursday, October 27, 2011.

Lascelles Chin preaches
perseverance at Hall of
Fame induction

EU grants available for food exporters

also plans to invest more in
advertising and marketing.

Gonzalez, in his short four
months at the helm, has demon-
strated that he is not afraid to
shake things up.

While, the plans were already
in train before he took charge, the
proposal to shift production of
about 3.5 million cases of beer
overseas was finalised and
announced under his watch.

A new Red Stripe beer cam-
paign incorporating a bear in a
‘Mission Impawsible’ has been
mocked by some but has got
everyone talking.

“We are going to continue
investing in the brand, new cam-
paign, and much more to gener-
ate a good conversation and con-
nection with the consumers
again,” he said. “We want Red
Stripe to be back on the lips of
grass-roots people.”

A beer company typically
spends 11-12 per cent of sales
revenue on marketing, according
to Gonzalez, who says he is pre-
pared to up that investment if he
can squeeze savings elsewhere in
Red Stripe’s operation.

His three-pronged strategy, as he
told shareholders, is driving effi-
ciencies ‘end to end’, brand value
and export growth.

Exports are profitable in all of
Red Stripe’s markets, except for
the United States.

“This year we start to fix it,” he
said.

“Our target is to increase market
share this year in an environment
where alcoholic servings have
decreased by 37 per cent since
April 2010. An ambitious target in
a continuing challenging economic
environment but one that we are
committed to achieving,” he stated.

Starting next year, beer sold to
North America will be produced in
Philadelphia. The shift will cut
about 70 jobs, but will mean $2 mil-
lion to $3 million more profit for the
company, according to Gonzalez.

Red Stripe is a $13 billion com-
pany by revenue. The company
made profit of $1 billion or 36
cents per share at yearend June
2011, up 28 per cent year on year.

Profits for the quarter ending
September was up 10 per cent at
4.47 cents per share.

Red Stripe on Friday announced
a dividend distribution of 20 cents
per share for a payout of $562 mil-
lion to shareholders to be paid
December 28.

The stock traded at a 52-high
Friday, up eight cents to $4.60
per share, valuing the company at
$12.9 billion.

sabrina.gordon@gleanerjm.com
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Some of the accolades / achievements gained by Hon. Lascelles A. Chin are: 
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Sixth-grader tops 
poster, essay contests
Tyrone Reid
S ta ff  Reporter

Y O U N G  C H EV O N N E  Aschute 
proved he was a master w ith 
both the pen and pencil by deliv­
ering an unprecedented sweep of 
the top honours in category two 
(12-14 years) of the Programme 
of Advancement Through Health 
and Education's (P A T H ) inau­
gural essay and poster competi­
tions for public schools.

After collecting his trophies 
and cash prizes at the ceremony. 
which was staged at the Hilton 
Kingston Hotel in St. Andrew on 
Friday, a visibly elated Chaconne 
nonchalantly told The G leaner 
that w inning the first place prizes 
in both competitions did not sur­
prise him.

CHEVONNE S BEST

“ I am happy, but I am not sur­
prised because I know I did my 
best and was hoping to come 
first in both categories," he said.

The sixth-grader, who attends 
the Inverness Primary and Infant 
School in Derry district. St. Ann, 
pocketed $15,500 for him self

CLl|C
(Cleaner's
UPCOM.NG I
f e a t u r e s

PRE-LABOUR DAY
May 18, 2004

JMA/JEA EXPO
May 26, 2004 TABLOID

MUNRO AND 
DICKENSON TRUST
May 23, 2004 OUTLOOK

YOUR DREAM HOME
May 25,2004

NOVA
SOUTHEASTERN
May 26, 2004 TABLOID

MUCH MORE TO COME!!!
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Y W h e r e  life u n fo ld s

and another $10,000 for his 
school.

The talented and intelligent 
young man, who is a lready 
planning ahead, says the money 
w ill go towards financing his 
education.

“ I am going to put it in a 
bank account so when I am 
going to high school I can take 
a little pressure off my mother,”  
he said.
NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

His winning essay was entitled 
‘ A Healthy and Educated 
Population is the Key to National 
D evelopm ent' - a notion the 
youngster strongly supports. His 
poster had a similar title. Other 
winners in the essay competition 
were Allistair Mighty of Gregory 
Park Prim ary and M ichael 
Anthony Teape of Tivoli Gardens 
High in categories one and three 
respectively.

Top honours in categories one 
and three of the poster competition 
went to Ricardo Edwards of 
Independent C ity Prim ary and 
Shelly Ann Henry of Glenmuir 
High School respectively. Ms 
Henry also earned her school 
$10,000 in addition to the $12.(XX) 
she pocketed for herself along 
with a trophy.

The essay and poster competi­
tions were launched by the PATH 
Programme in November last year 
and received over a I (X) essays and 
30 posters, As a result of its suc­
cess, plans are in the pipeline to 
make the competition ‘grander’ 
next time around by extending it 
beyond the sphere of public 
schools. Horace Dailey, Minister 
of Labour and Social Security and 
Maxine Henry-Wilson, Minister of 
Education. Youth and Culture, 
who were both slated to speak at 
the ceremony, were absent.

CARLINGTON V i \ im i/Freelance Photographer

Lascelles Chin (left), Janet Davidson (centre) and Audrey Marks-Dunston proudly display their 

plaques after receiving special awards at the Florida International University (FIU) graduating 

ceremony on Sunday. Chin received his award being the ‘Business Leader of the Year - 

M ale ’, Marks-Dunston for ‘Business Leader of the Year - Fem ale’, and Davidson for 

‘Humanitarian of the Year’.

Tour of Brown’s Town Market planned
Leslie McLean
Gleaner Writer 

C LAREM O N T. St. Ann:
I  HE ST. ANN Parish Council has decided to carry 

out a tour of the Brown's Town Market on which a 

contractor ceased working in November 2002 after 

only $29 million of the $50 million announced by the 
Ministry of Local Government was spent.

This information was gleaned from the monthly 

meeting of the St. Ann Parish Council on Thursday, 
May 13.

Deputy Mayor and councillor for the Bamboo divi­

sion, Sidney Stewart, noted that the market belonged 

to the council and it would have to make a decision as

to what needs to be done, as the Ministry of Local 

Government was not telling the truth as to when work 

would commence.
He said "At one stage we were told that the contract 

was signed and work would commence, later the 
Inter-American Development Bank (IA D B ) signed 
off on the lenin and now we are told the IAD B had not 

signed off yet.”

A NATIONAL ISSUE

He pointed out that the issue surrounding the 
Brown’s Town Market was a national issue, as it was 

used by vendors from all over the island, and at pre­

sent, vendors were scattered along the main street 

because of the poor condition of the market.

Golding accuses CARICOM 
of fumbling on Haiti issue
S E N A T O R  B R U C E  Golding, 
Jam aica Labour Party ( J L P )  
spokesman on foreign affairs and 
foreign trade, has charged that 
Caribbean Community (C A R I ­
COM ) governments were sidelin­
ing themselves from the efforts to 
restore democracy in Haiti.

In a statement on Sunday, he 
said it was now obvious that 
C A R IC O M  s insistence on an 
inquiry into the circumstances in 
which former President Jean-

Bertrand Aristide left 
Haiti was going nowhere. 
"Its appeal to the United 
Nations to undertake such 
an investigation had been 
ignored and the same fate 
awaits its planned appeal 
to the O AS (Organisation 
of Am erican States) 
which, despite its misgiv­
ings, was fully engaged in 
resolving the Haitian cri­
sis and whose Permanent GOLDING

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION, YOUTH AND CULTURE 

SCHOOL FEEDING PROGRAMME 
INVITATION FOR BIDS

Tax-Compliant companies registered with the National Contracts Commission are invited to submit sealed 

bids for the provision of the following commodities to be used in the School Feeding Programme for the 

September 2004 School Term:-

• Twelve Thousand (12,000) Bags Long Grain White Rice(45 Kg. per bag)

• Four Thousand (4,000) Bags Counter Flour (45 Kg. per bag)

• Four Thousand (4.000) Bags Cornmeal (20 Kg. per bag)

• Two Thousand (2,000) C a se s  Corned Beef (24x12 ozs.)
AND

• Four Thousand (4,000) Pails Vegetable Oil (15 litres per pail)

OR

• Three Thousand Eight Hundred (3.800) Pails Vegetable Oil (17.5 litres per pail)

AND

• Two Thousand (2,000) C a se s  Tinned Mackerel (24x14ozs.)

OR

• Two Thousand (2,000) C a se s  Tinned Mackerel (24x15ozs.)

AND

Six Hundred (600) Drums Butter Oil (210Kg)
O R

• Six Hundred and Thirty (630) Drums Butter Oil (200 Kg)

E lig ib ility
Bidders must be registered to supply goods and services to the Government of Jamaica in any of the fol­

lowing categories:
General Purchases 

General Supplies 

Merchandise

Bidders will be required to prove their registration and tax compliance status by submitting with their ten­

ders: 
a valid and current Tax Compliance Certificate 

a Letter of Approval from the National Contracts Commission

Bids submitted without these documents shall be deemed non-responsive

Complete sets of bidding documents will be available as of 2004 May 19 at the following address:-

Ministry of Education, Youth and Culture 

School Feeding Unit 

2nd Floor, Building 2 

2 National Heroes Circle 

Kingston 4

All bids must be placed in the tender box in the School Feeding Unit by 12:00 noon (local time) on 2004 

June 4. Bids will be opened in the presence of bidders' representatives who choose to attend at 12:05 p.m. 

on 2004 June 4at the same venue.

Council last week 
received interim Prime 
M in ister Gerald
Latortue,”  Mr. Golding 
pointed out.
ACCUSATIONS

Mr. Golding accused 
C A R IC O M  of ‘fum ­
bling’, noting that at both 
the intercessional meet­
ing in St. Kitts in March 
and the Bureau meeting 
in Antigua earlier this 

month, it had failed to take a deci­
sive, pro-active position toward the 
situation in Haiti, opting instead to 
defer the issue to the annual sum­
mit scheduled for July in Grenada. 
In the meanwhile, its position on 
Haiti remained confused and con­
fusing, because while it refused to 
recognise or co-operate with the 
interim government, it had agreed 
to provide peacekeeping forces and 
the Caribbean Development Bank 
had been asked to provide eco­
nomic assistance to Haiti, Mr. 
Golding added.

Mr. Golding said that C A R I­
COM  was guilty of forfeiting the 
important role that it ought to be 
playing in resolving the political 
crisis in Haiti. The commitment

of the interim government to 
hold new elections next year, he 
said, must be supported and ful­
filled , but considerable work 
needs to be done to strengthen 
the institutional capacity of the 
Haitian people to conduct free 
and fair elections. He said that 
C A R IC O M , and especia lly  
Jamaica, could play a pivotal role 
in this regard, particularly in ensur­
ing that the process was inclusive 
and that the misguided attempts by 
the interim government to isolate 
representatives of the Lavalas 
movement were not countenanced.

GOLDING S WARNING

Mr. Golding recalled that in a 
statement on February 29, he had 
warned that “ C A R ICO M  may be 
left as a stranded bystander while 
the Haitian people struggle to 
build their fledgling and faltering 
democracy.”  That procrastination, 
he said, continued to the discredit 
of C A R IC O M  and the disadvan­
tage of the Haitian people.

Mr. G o ld ing  expressed the 
hope that after the imminent 
departure of Mr. Aristide. C A R I­
COM  would be more inclined to 
become constructively engaged 
in the rebuilding of Haiti.

Review court 
throws out case 
against CCJ
Barbara Gayle
S ta ff  Reporter

T H E  JU D IC IA L  Review Court 
said, on Friday that Opposition 
Leader Edward Seaga and the 
other claimants had failed to show 
what irreversible damage would 
be caused if the Bills to establish 
the Caribbean Court of Justice 
(CC J) were enacted into law.

The court was giving its reasons 
for throwing out the motions 
which Mr. Seaga. The Jamaican 
Bar Association, the Independent 
Jam aica Council for Human 
Rights, and the human rights 
group Jamaicans for Justice had 
brought against the Government, 
challenging the constitutionality of 
ilk- Bills,

When the court dismissed the 
motions on April 21 after it upheld 
a prelim inary point made by 
Michael Hylton Q.C.. solicitor- 
general, the court had promised to 
put its reasons in writing.

PREMATURE CLAIMS

Mr. Hylton, along with attor­
neys-at-law Simone Mayhew and 
Gladys Young, had argued that the 
claims were premature because the 
Bills, while having been tabled in 
the Senate, had not reached the 
debating process, a usual practice 
by both the House of 
Representatives and the Senate. 
They said any irregularity in the 
conduct of Parliamentary business 
was a matter for Parliament and 
was not applicable in the courts.

The court, comprising Chief 
Justice Lensley Wolfe, Mr. Justice 
Horace Marsh and Mrs. Justice 
Norma McIntosh, all gave written 
reasons yesterday. The judges all 
agreed that the claimants failed to 
bring their claims within the cate­
gory of exceptional circumstances.

In his written reasons, the Chief 
Justice said the Privy  Council 
recognised that there may be the 
exceptional cases where the rights 
protected by the Constitution may 
be extinguished if the courts did 
not intervene prior to the enact­
ment of such a provision. He said 
in such circumstances, if the con­
sequences of the offending provi­
sion may be immediate and irre­
versible giving rise to substantial 
damage or prejudice, the courts 
may if necessary intervene before 
the Bill was enacted.

“ It is clear from what has been 
said that the courts have jurisdic­
tion to hear a claim that the provi­
sions in a Bill, if enacted, would 
contravene the Constitution and 
that the courts should grant imme­
diate declaratory or other relief,” 
the Chief Justice said.

FAILED CLAIMS

“ In my view the claimants have 
completely failed to bring their 
claims within the category of 
exceptional circumstances. They 
have failed to show what irre­
versible damage would be caused 
if the Bills were enacted into law. 
They have failed to show that die 
consequences of enactment of the 
Bills may be immediate and irre­
versible resulting in substantial 
prejudice and damage.”

The claimants have filed an 
appeal against the Judicial Review 
Court's ruling. They are asking 
that the Court of Appeal find that 
the B ills  are unconstitutional 
because the CCJ would not be a 
permanent court like the Supreme 
Court and Court of Appeal, which 
are enshrined in the Constitution 
of Jamaica.

&
CONTACT 
NOTICE

The property situated at 6 3/4 King Street, Denham Town 

is required to facilitate the construction of housing units 

under the Urban Renewal Housing Programme. 

The property owner Mr. Arthur Lammie, his agent 

or anyone knowing his whereabouts is being asked to 

contact:

m m m

rn The Project Director, Inner City Housing Project or 

%  The Com pany Secretary/Legal Counsel

a.
National H ousing Trust 

4 Park Boulevard 

K ingston 5 

Telephone: 929-6500-9 Ext. 2251 or 2261
III  WITHIN FOURTEEN (14) DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS PUBLICATIONs d

Kingston Gleaner, May 18, 2004,Pg. 6, Kingston, Kingston, JM

https://newspaperarchive.com/kingston-gleaner-may-18-2004-p-6/

Vincent A. Chen
Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary

Mr. Vincent Anthony Chen holds the position of 
Director and Company Secretary for all the LASCO Af-
filiated Companies: LASCO Distributors Limited, LASCO 
Manufacturing Limited and LASCO Financial Services 
Limited.  He serves as General Counsel/Chief Legal 
Officer at all three companies.  Mr. Chen’s duties include 
ensuring that the Companies abide by the standard 
legal and financial practices along with maintaining 
Corporate Governance. 

Mr. Chen has over 54 years of experience in the field 
of law having successfully passed the solicitors quali-
fying examinations set by the LAW Society in England 
and having passed the common law examinations 
administered by Osgoode Hall Law School in Canada.  
He is a partner at the law firm Chen, Green and Compa-
ny as well as a Notary Public for Jamaica. He qualified 
as a Barrister and Solicitor in British Colombia, Canada 
and as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court in England. He 
appears regularly in the Supreme Court, The Court of 
Appeal and the Privy Council in civil litigation involving 
commercial matters.

Mr. Chen is a part of the Board of Directors for the 
Level Bottom Farms and Supplies Limited, and Vanda 
Limited.  He formerly served as the Chairman of Salada 
Foods Jamaica Limited. His hobbies include boating 
and playing cricket, being a proud member of both 
the Kingston Cricket Club and The Royal Jamaica Yacht 
Club. He is a member of St. Luke’s Church and serves as 
a member of the Diocesan Council - Diocese of Jamaica 
and the Cayman Islands and a member of that Coun-
cil’s Finance Board. He is married to Helen and has two 
daughters.  
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Compton Rodney 
FCCA

Independent Non-Executive Director

A Chartered Accountant, a Fellow of the Chartered 
Association of Certified Accountants (U.K.) and a Fellow 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica, 
Mr. Compton Rodney also holds a B. Sc. (Economics) 
degree from the University of London.

He is the Registrar of the Public Accountancy Board.   
He is member of the Board of Directors of the Sports 
Development Foundation and serves as chairman of its 
Audit and Human Resources Committees as well as a 
member of its Finance Committee. 

Mr. Rodney served as the Honorary Secretary/
Treasurer of the American Chamber of Commerce 
(AMCHAM) for 28 years and as the Honorary Treasurer 
of the Jamaica Olympic Association for 27 years.  For 
many years he served as Vice-Chairman of the Kingston 
Technical High School Board of Management as well as 
the Chairman of the Multicare Foundation. 

In 2009, Mr. Rodney was the recipient of the Distin-
guished Members Award from the Institute of Char-
tered Accountants of Jamaica.

Mr. Rodney also serves as a Director on the Board of 
LASCO Financial Services Limited.

Jacinth Hall-Tracey 
MBA, BA (Hons)

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Jacinth Hall-Tracey has led the growth, ex-
pansion and transformation of the LASCO Financial 
Services Group for over 18 years.  The company is a key 
industry player in the Remittance, Cambio and Micro 
loans industries and is now embarking on making a 
significant mark in electronic retail payment services, 
providing access to more financial services for the 
Company’s main customer base, the unbanked.

With over 31 years’ experience in leading teams 
including over 21 years developing companies in the 
financial services sector, Mrs. Hall-Tracey has acquired 
the insight and expertise to guide the strategic direc-
tion of the LASCO Financial Services Group. 

Her other Board positions include LASCO Manu-
facturing Limited, LASCO Distributors Limited and 
LASCO Microfinance Limited.  She holds an MBA from 
Herriot Watt University, Edinburgh Business School, a 
certificate in Director’s Strategic Guide to Corporate 
Governance and Leadership and in 2020 completed the 
Frankfurt Business School’s Certified Expert in Microfi-
nance course and the Digital Shift Compliance Course 
from the Platinum Network.

Dr. Eileen A. Chin 
MBA

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Eileen A. Chin is a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company. Born in Havana City, Cuba, Dr. Chin holds 
a post graduate degree in medicine from the Havana 
University School of Medicine.   

Dr. Chin also holds an MBA in Global Management 
and has received knowledge and skills development 
training in Advanced Negotiation, Risk Management 
and Lean Six Sigma.  She specialized in, and taught 
histology from 1993 to 1998 at the Girón School of 
Medicine, and migrated to Jamaica in 1998.

Dr. Chin joined the LASCO Group of Companies in 
1999 serving in several positions such as marketing, 
product and label development and international 
business development for Central and South Ameri-
can markets. She was appointed General Manager of 
LASCO Foods, LASCO Food (Successors) Limited and 
LASCO Properties in 2008.  Two years following, she 
was appointed Managing Director of LASCO Manu-
facturing Limited where she implemented US$18M 
expansion of the Manufacturing facility. She held this 
position until 2015.

Dr. Chin currently serves as a member of the Board 
of Directors of LASCO Financial Services Limited and 
LASCO Manufacturing Limited.  She is also a member 
of the Portia Simpson Miller Foundation.

Noel daCosta 
CD, BSC, MASc, MBA, FCII, DTech

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Noel daCosta has served on numerous boards in 
the private and public sectors, as well as on charitable 
organizations and government appointed national 
committees.  He has been at the helm of several local 
and international organizations, including the Jamaica 
Chamber of Commerce, the Jamaica Institution of Engi-
neers, the Jamaica Debates Commission, the Caribbean 
Breweries Association, the Master Brewers Association 
of the Americas, United Way of Jamaica, the National 
Building Code Committee, the Petroleum Trade Reform 
Committee and the Caribbean Council of United Way 
Worldwide.

A consultant with over fifteen years’ experience in 
Corporate Relations, he also has over three decades of 
technical and engineering leadership in the Petroleum 
and Brewing Industries.  He is a founding partner in the 
Jentech Group of Engineering Companies.

A graduate of the University of the West Indies, he 
has postgraduate degrees in Engineering from the 
University of Waterloo, Business Administration from 
the University of Toronto, and Insurance from the Char-
tered Insurance Institute (UK), and is a Fellow of the 
Jamaica Institution of Engineers, as well as the Institu-
tion of Chemical Engineers (UK).

In 2012, he was appointed by the Government of 
Jamaica to the Order of Distinction in the Rank of Com-
mander (CD) for his contribution to engineering and 
manufacturing, and in 2019, he was conferred with an 
Honorary Doctor of Technology for his contribution to 
nation building by the University of Technology.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of LASCO Manufacturing Limited (LML) (“The Board”) is collectively responsible 
for the long-term success of the Company and the continuation of good governance in the interest 
of its shareholders.  In addition, The Board’s mission is to ensure that the Company continues to grow 

into a successful and profitable business, while achieving the highest standards of risk management being 
driven by passion to make LASCO a  global corporate leader in innovation and entrepreneurship, a world 
name synonymous with integrity, objectivity, professional competence, accountability, fairness, transpar-
ency, and commitment. 

The governance structure of the Company incorporates guidelines and standards based on its Articles 
of Incorporation, its Policies, Charters, and Terms of Reference adopted by The Board of Directors, and the 
Rules and regulations of the Jamaica Stock Exchange Junior Market (JSE) and the Jamaica Corporate Gov-
ernance Code 2021.  The Company’s Policies and Charters are updated periodically so as to remain current.

Professor Rosalea Hamilton 
BA (Hons); MIA; LLB (Hons), C.L.E., PhD

Independent Non-Executive Director

Professor Rosalea Hamilton is currently CEO of the 
LASCO Chin Foundation since June 2018 and Chair of 
Caribbean Philanthropic Alliance since 2019. She was 
Vice President at the University of Technology, Jamaica 
(2008 to 2018) and was awarded a Professorship in 
the Scotiabank Chair in Entrepreneurship and Devel-
opment. She established and led The MSME Alliance, 
a network of small business organizations, for ten 
(10) years. She also established the Institute of Law 
& Economics and worked as a consultant and public 
educator on trade, governance, gender and other areas 
of economic and social development.

She has taught at the graduate and undergraduate 
levels in Jamaica and the US. She was Special Advisor 
and Trade Policy Consultant in the Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs and Foreign Trade (2000-2003) and served as 
Chief Advisor to the Prime Minister of Jamaica (May 
2006-Sept 2007). She is currently a Board Director for 
LASCO Manufacturing Limited and the National Integ-
rity Action. She was appointed Honorary Consul for the 
Republic of Sierra Leone in Jamaica in 2022.
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FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSI-
BILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board’s roles and responsibilities 
are governed by the Board Charter. 
Its responsibilities are to ensure that 
Management is capable of executing 
its responsibilities and that there is a 
successful promotion and growth of 
the business.

The Board has delegated responsi-
bility for overall management of LASCO 
Manufacturing Limited to the Manag-
ing Director.

The Board is responsible:
(i)    to set and approve policies, 

(ii)   to make decisions to the strategies 
including annual operating plans 
and budgets, 

(iii)  for business development initia-
tives

(iv)  for major acquisitions and disposal

(v)   for corporate financing, and related 
treasury activities 

(vi)  for Risk management and internal 
controls

(vii) to compliance with laws, regula-
tions and code of ethical business 
conduct

(viii)  for shareholders and other inter-
nal and external communication

(xi)  to ensure that shareholders’ value is 
protected.  

The Board strives to balance the inter-
ests of the Company’s diverse constituen-
cies, including its shareholders, custom-
ers, suppliers, employees, creditors, and 
the communities in which it operates. 
The Company aims to be transparent 
in its activities, to increase shareholders’ 
confidence and maximize value.  

In carrying out its functions, the 
Board also ensures that the Company, 
maintains its Corporate Social Respon-
sibility (CSR) activities and Sustainable 
Environmental Practices.  The Board 
relies on the advice and reports of its 
Executive Management and the Com-
pany Secretary. 
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Eric Hosin,

president of

Guardian Life

Limited, says the

shift by credit unions

to Medecus has not

resulted in strong

volume sales.
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LASCO stocks lift JSE junior market

RUDOLPH BROWN/PHOTOGRAPHER

Dr Eileen Chin (right), managing director of LASCO Manufacturing Limited, inserts the

strip with the company’s name on the trading board of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE)

Junior Exchange at the ceremonial listing ceremony at the JSE in Kingston yesterday.

Others at listing ceremony are (from left) JSE General Manager Marlene Street Forrest;

Jacqueline Johnson, general manager LASCO Pharmaceutical Division; exective

chairman of LASCO group, Lascelles Chin;  Jacinth Hall-Tracey; and Wentworth Graham,

JSE chief regulatiory officer.

THREE LASCO Group affiliated companies were

listed Tuesday, close to a month after more than

1,000 investors snapped up shares in the companies.

The three stocks, Lasco Manufacturing (LASM),

Lasco Financial (LASF) and Lasco Distributors

(LASD) were listed at J$2.50 each.

They debuted on the JSE Junior Exchange to

strong interest from the market.

LASCO Manufacturing generated the biggest

buzz, but after trading in 177,200 of the stock units,

LASM closed flat at J$2.50.

LASD rose to J$2.52 on volumes of 21,400 units,

while LASF closed at J$2.87 on thin trades of 500

units.
The value of total trades amounted to J$498,514.

Interest in the Lasco stocks pushed the JSE Junior

Market Index up by 3.09 points or 1.22 per cent to

close at 257.28
The new market entrants now double the number

of JSE junior market listed companies to six.

business@gleanerjm.com

COK SODALITY Cooperative Credit

Union Limited last month cut ties with

Sagicor Life Jamaica and joined Guardian

Life’s Medecus health scheme instead, saying it

was a cost saving measure.

To date, 33 of 44 credit unions under the

Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League

(JCCUL) umbrella, have made that switch

according to Raymond Walker, chief executive

officer of Caribbean Assurance Brokers Limited,

whose company brokers group health insurance

coverage for the small financing agencies through

Sagicor.
COK Sodality, which offers its members

insurance coverage, made the switch between the

rival insurer providers on September 1, said

member care manager Audia Hoo, after Sagicor

proposed an increase in fees while benefits would

have remained “static”.

Hoo said more than 700 users of the Medecus

health insurance product at COK Sodality will

benefit from monthly savings of up to J$4,885

each by using Medecus instead of Sagicor.

The 700 COK users represents just a fraction,

0.33 per cent, of its 213,000 membership base.

Sagicor’s spokeswoman Ingrid Card down-

played the shift, saying the credit unions tend to

act as a group, and so “the attrition must be

viewed from that perspective”.

JCCUL said the members who have remained

with Sagicor do so out of loyalty.

Still, Eric Hosin, president of Guardian Life

Limited, said the new business trending his way

does not add much to existing volumes, despite

the hundreds of thousands that make up the credit

unions’ membership base.

Hosin said they tend to be employed to

companies that already provide health insurance.

Guardian Life still sees potential in developing

the market, and continues to push

for new members to sign up.

“We are hoping through our

broker to get more persons

to come on board,” Hosin

said.

FULL RANGE OF SERVICES

Caribbean Assurance, a

five-year-old, multi-line

insurance brokerage selling

the full range of insurance

services and products – from a

‘pin to an anchor’ – according to

Walker, offers service to the credit

union movement through JCCUL.

Under the arrangement, individual

credit unions determine whether to offer

coverage through Medecus, Sagicor, or

both, Walker said.
The gradual shift to Guardian Life’s

Medecus product has been ongoing since

2007 following two significant increases in

benefits, first by Blue Cross of Jamaica and

then by Sagicor which acquired Blue Cross’

portfolio in December 2008.

“We started selling for all health providers, but

when Blue Cross was acquired by Sagicor, we

took the full block of credit union business that

was formerly with Sagicor to Guardian Life,”

said Walker.
“It has grown from this point.’’

Patrick Dorman, senior product administrator

with Caribbean Assurance says that of the 37

credit unions now served by his brokerage, only

four on-sell Sagicor health to their members — St

Elizabeth cooperative, the police cooperative, the

special constabulary force and the nurses’

association.
The remaining 33 sell Medecus.

Both Sagicor and Guardian Life provide similar

benefits for credit union members in some

cases, including that of assistant

Credit unions drop 
Sagicor for Medecus

Health insurance exodus

PLEASE SEE EXODUS, C2

 

BOARD COMPOSITION
As at March 31, 2023, the composi-

tion of The Board of LML was eight (8) 
Directors, of which two are Executive 
Directors, and six (6) Non-Executive Di-
rectors of which three (3) are Indepen-
dent,  Mr. Compton Rodney, Professor 
Rosalea Hamilton and Mr. Noel daCosta.  

MEETINGS
The Board of Directors meets quar-

terly, and as necessary, will meet for 
special meetings to deal with pertinent 
matters. Five (5) meetings were held 
during the year.

BOARD ACTIVITY HIGHLIGHTS
The solar energy experimental 

project in collaboration with the United 
States Agency of International Develop-
ment (USAID) and the University of the 
West Indies to install Solar energy on 
LML’s compound continues.

SELECTION AND  
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Corporate Governance Com-
mittee has been assigned the respon-
sibility to identify potential candidates 
of qualified professionals from which 
a selection could be made to appoint 
the potential individual to the Board of 
LML.  The Committee is responsible to 
arrange interviews and   make recom-
mendations to the Board who grants 
approval for board appointment.  The 
reference for this decision is outlined 
in LML’s Corporate Governance Policy 
which may be viewed on the Compa-
ny’s website at: https://www.LASCOja-
maica.com/manufacturing/investor- re-
lations/corporate-governance-policy/         

Appointments are made on merit 
with due regard to the skills, compe-
tence and expertise required by The 
Board of LML.  It also takes into con-
sideration diversity.  Members of The 
Board are experienced and respected 
individuals, with 
diverse skills and 
knowledge from dif-
ferent professions. 

Further details on 
the expertise, skills 
and academic qual-
ifications of our Di-
rectors, are outlined 
in their Profile in this 
2023 Annual Report on pages 17-22. 

Induction/Orientation:  A new 
director who has been appointed to 
serve on the Board of the Company 
participates in an induction programme 
arranged by the Company Secretary.  
This induction/orientation includes 
sharing the vision and mission and core 
value of the Company, ensuring that 
the new director is updated with past 
Board Meeting Minutes, meeting Board 
Members and Executive Management 
and is taken on a tour of the Manufac-
turing Plants.

Training Programmes:  The Board 
recognises the importance of contin-
uous training for its directors.  Each 
Director is required to complete a 
minimum of 14 hours each year relating 
to his/her profession or seminars/work-
shops attended.  All Directors fulfilled 
the requirement over and above the 
period required in accordance with 
their profession and other external 
events during the year under review, 
including those mentioned below:

TOPIC 	 % attendance
Corporate Governance Training and Workshop 2022/23 
inclusive of ESG	 100%	
Presenter: Faceylaw Consultancy 
Board Evaluation workshop November 2022	 100%	
Presenter: Faceylaw Consultancy - 2022
ESG  Workshop	 100% 
Presenter: Jamaica Stock Exchange  - 2022                                  

SCAN QR CODE 
to view Corporate 
Governance Policy 
and Board Charter.

LEAD INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTOR’S ROLE AND 
RESPONSIBILITIES

The term Independent Director 
refers to a director who is not related 
to the Company by virtue of not being 
an employee of any LASCO Affiliated 
Company within the last three (3) years; 
is not an immediate family member 
of any director or senior officer of any 
LASCO Affiliated Company and does 
not represent a shareholder owning 
more than 10% of the voting shares of 
the Company.

The Lead Independent Director 
of LML is Mr. Compton Rodney.  Mr. 
Rodney shall, among other duties as 
outlined below, co-ordinate the activi-
ties of the Non-Executive Directors and 
perform such other duties and respon-
sibilities as the Board may direct.

The Lead Independent Director shall 
(i) ensure that Non-Executive Directors 
have adequate opportunities to meet 
and discuss issues in sessions of the 
Independent Directors, without man-

agement of the Company present and 
serve as Chairman of such meetings; (ii)  
meet with the external auditors, in cam-
era, to discuss any findings/difficulties 
experienced during the audit and (iii) in 
conjunction with the Executive Chair-
man, ensure that resources and exper-
tise are available to the Board so that it 
may function effectively and efficiently, 
and (iv) co-ordinate the activities of the 
Non-Executive Directors and perform 
such other duties and responsibilities as 
the Board may direct.

The Lead Independent Director may, 
as is necessary, be available to share-
holders if they have concerns which 
have not been resolved through the 
normal channels of the Executive Chair-
man or the Company Secretary.  

COMPANY SECRETARY 
The Company Secretary is appoint-

ed by the Board and is a key advisor 
to the board and management on 
compliance, corporate governance 
and shareholders matters.  The Com-
pany Secretary provides new directors 
with information about the Company 
to assist them in their orientation.  All 
directors have access to the Compa-
ny Secretary’s advice and services in 
respect of the administration of the 
functions of the Board. 

The Company stands guided by 
information in the Corporate Gover-
nance Index from the JSE to note where 
it needs to improve and continue to do 
so. 

The score for 2022 was 81.44 and the 
rating was A. This was an improvement 
over the previous year.

SCAN QR CODE 
to view Corporate 
Governance Policy 
and Board Charter.

THE BOARD 

 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor- relations/corporate-governance-policy/    
 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor- relations/corporate-governance-policy/    
 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor- relations/corporate-governance-policy/    
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The Board has three Committees: Audit & Risk Management, Compensation & Human Re-
sources and Corporate Governance.  The members of these Committees are appointed by the 
Board of Directors.   

Each Committee has its Charter/Terms of Reference which has been approved by the Board.  
The Committee’s responsibility is to review and revise Policies/Charters annually/biennially and 
the Board approves them.  The Key responsibilities of each Committee are outlined in its Char-
ter/Policy/and terms of Reference which can be viewed on the Company’s website at: https://
www.LASCOjamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/

SCAN QR CODE 
to view Corporate 
Governance Policy 
and Board Charter.

The composition of this Committee is three (3) members. 
The Committee is chaired by Mr. Compton Rodney, who is 
the Lead Independent Director.  Mr. Rodney is a Chartered 
Accountant and has the expertise and skills suitable for this 
role.  The other independent director is Mr. Noel daCosta and 
Professor Rosalea Hamilton, Non-Executive director. Other 
invited directors are: Hon. Lascelles Chin, James E.D. Rawle, 
Managing Director. The Internal Auditors as well as the Finan-
cial Controller, the Deputy General Manager and the Manage-
ment Accountant are also invited to attend. 

Meeting - The Committee meets quarterly. During the year 
four (4) meetings were held.

At these meetings the Committee analyses the quarterly 
unaudited financial statements and the audited financial 
statements to ensure that they were prepared in accordance 
with the Rules of the International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Junior Market Rules of the Jamaica Stock 
Exchange.  These financial Statements for 2022/2023 were 
approved by the Board of Directors for publication and may 
be viewed on the Company’s website at:  https://www.LASCO-
jamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/financial-re-
leases/

The Audit Committee Chairman reports to the Board 
quarterly on matters discussed at its quarterly meetings, and 
continues to be guided by its established Charter to ensure 
that:

• The integrity of the financial reporting is in accordance 
with established standards. 

• Timely disclosures are made to the JSE.

• Key risks are identified and managed.

These guidelines were complied with during the financial 
year.

The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.  Internal audit services are provided 
by Ernst and Young.  The Committee reviewed and approved 
the audit plan for the financial year.  The Internal Auditors 
work closely with the management team to establish, im-
prove, and add value to processes and controls in helping to 
bring effectiveness to risk management and internal controls.  
Systems, process-flows, policies, and procedures are reviewed 
periodically.  

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

COMPENSATION & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The composition of this Committee is two (2) members. 
Mr. Vincent Chen who is the Chairman and Professor Rosalea 
Hamilton.  The Executive Chairman is invited to this meeting.

The responsibilities of the Committee are to advise the 
Board on all matters relating to the compensation of the 
Executive Chairman, the Managing Director, and the Non-Ex-
ecutive Directors.  

The Compensation Committee’s Charter requires that 
the Committee meets at least once per year to review the 
remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.  

For the financial year under review, the Committee met as 
mandated and made its recommendations to the Board of 
Directors. 

The Board seeks to ensure that its directors are reasonably 
compensated for their services by bench marking against 
similar companies.

The fees for Non-Executive Directors are highlighted in the 
financial statements of this Annual Report.  The fees paid for 
the year ended March 31, 2023 totalled $13.5M.

The composition of this Committee is two (2) members. 
The Corporate Governance Committee comprises three (3) 
members. Mr. Vincent Anthony Chen is the Chairman. Other 
members are Mr. Compton Rodney and Professor Rosalea 
Hamilton.  The Committee meets twice per year to give over-
sight in respect of the structure, composition and functioning 
of the Board and its Committees.  The Corporate Governance 
Committee performs the following duties:

•	Recommends and monitors the implementation of a gov-
ernance structure suited for the Company.

•	Oversees the selection, induction, training, and succession 
planning process for Directors.

•	Assists the Board to determine, understand and work 
within the legal, cultural, and institutional framework that 
affects the goals and direction of the Company.

•	Advises on matters of Corporate Governance.

•	Develops policies as are required for the effective gover-
nance of the Company.

•	Monitors trends and best practices in Corporate Gover-
nance to properly discharge the Committee’s duties.

•	Updates The Board on governance issues as needed.

•	Considers possible conflict of interest of Directors.

•	Monitors related party transactions of Directors and makes 
the necessary proposals to the Board in accordance with 
the Board’s Charter.

During the year several policies were drafted, reviewed, and 
approved by the Board of Directors:

The Corporate Governance Policy and Terms of Reference 
may be viewed on the Company’s Website at: https://www.
LASCOjamaica.com/manufacturing/investor-relations/corpo-
rate-governance-policy/

The Company completed its annual Board performance evaluation facilitated by an external Corporate Governance Con-
sultant. Areas covered were:  Directors’ self-evaluation, Board Committees, Board Chairman and Committee Chairman.

From the assessment, recommendations on how to improveboard performance with emphasis on good governance were 
given. This evaluation was also designed to give insight into how the Directors perceived the Board on a whole, and how they 
are currently performing in key areas.  A Board improvement plan was submitted to the Company based on the outcomes.

ATTENDANCE REGISTER
Below is a summary of the attendance register in respect of the meetings held for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

The following table outlines the Composition of each Committee: 

Meetings	 LML	 LML	 LML Compensation	 LML Audit	 Corporate
	 AGM	 BOD	 Committee	 Committee	 Governance
No. of Meetings	 1	 5	 1	 4	 1
Lascelles Chin	 1	 5	 -	 -	 -
Eileen Chin	 1	 4	 -	 -	 -
Noel daCosta	 1	 4	 -	 4	 -
Rosalea Hamilton	 1	 4	 1	 4	 1
Jacinth Hall-Tracey	 1	 4	 -	 -	 -
Vincent  Chen	 1	 5	 1	 -	 1
James Rawle	 1	 5	 -	 4	 -
Compton Rodney	 1	 5	 -	 4	 1

Meetings	 LML Compensation Committee	 LML Audit Committee	 Corporate Governance
Lascelles Chin	 -	 -	 -
Vincent Chen	 √	 -	 √
Compton Rodney	 -	 √	 √
Noel daCosta	  -	 √	 -
Rosalea Hamilton	 √	 √	 √

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/
https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/
 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/financial-releases/
 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/financial-releases/
 https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing /investor-relations/financial-releases/
https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/ 
https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/ 
https://www.lascojamaica.com/manufacturing/investor-relations/corporate-governance-policy/ 
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Executive Chairman and the Board will maintain 

contact with Shareholders to understand their issues and 
concerns.  One of the key channels used to disseminate in-
formation to our shareholders is the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM).  Shareholders are given the freedom to asked ques-
tions at the AGM where views are clarified, and plans of the 
Company explained.   

The Managing Director presents a detailed report on the 
status of the Company and the future outlook for the benefit 
of the shareholders to obtain a better understanding of the 
internal operations of the Company.

Another channel is via the “Management Discussion & 
Analysis” section in the Annual Report which provides de-
tailed information on the Company’s plans and opportunities.

During the year the company made press releases relating 
to marketing activities and Corporate Social responsibility 
activities. 

The Company has not resumed factory tours to Sharehold-
ers due to lingering effects of the COVID virus.

MINUTES OF AGM
Shareholders may request a copy of the AGM minutes 

from the Company Secretary’s Office by contacting us via 
telephone at 876-749-5272.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
LASCO Manufacturing Limited continued its commitment 

to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through Education, 

Health, Community Development, Environment and Sports.
The past 22 years have seen LASCO and the Jamaica 

Constabulary Force stage the Police Officer of the Year Pro-
gramme, which recognizes the exemplary efforts of Police 
Officers.  LASCO also acknowledges the Nurses Association 
of Jamaica where it recognizes the unfailing contribution of 
the Nurses to health care in Jamaica.  The Company is also an 
active partner of the Recycling Partners of Jamaica. 

During the year, these programmes among others were 
highlighted and can be viewed in this Annual Report.

LASCO CHIN FOUNDATION
LML is a contributor and supporter in the activities/pro-

grammes of the LASCO Chin Foundation.
During the year, these programmes among others were 

highlighted. Excerpts can be viewed on page 52 of this Annu-
al Report.

HUMAN RESOURCES
During the year, staff training and meeting continued. Ar-

eas covered were (1) Fire & First Aid training, (2) Performance 
Management training, (3) Occupational Health & Safety. 
Two (2) key areas of training conducted annually are: Good 
Manufacturing Practices (GMP) and Hazard Analysis Critical 
Control Point (HACCP). The Company in collaboration with 
the National Blood Transfusion Service and LML participated 
in a blood drive held on the Company’s premises.  Full details 
of our Human Resources activities are highlighted on page 46 
of this annual report.  
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Daniel Strachan
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Joel Gonzalez
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MD&A

Our strategy is underpinned 
by programmes of continuous 
improvement to drive 
operational efficiencies, cost 
management, organizational 
adaptations, and simplification 
as well as ongoing research 
and development to deliver 
product innovations and 
renovations. 

OUR BUSINESS

LASCO Manufacturing Limited was incor-
porated in October 1994 by the merger 
of LASCO Foods (Successors) Limited and 

LASCO Foods Limited.  The registered office of 
the company is located at 27 Red Hills Road, 
Kingston 10, while the manufacturing facilities 
are located at White Marl, St. Catherine.

The Company was listed on the Junior Mar-
ket of the Jamaica Stock Exchange on October 
12, 2010, and trades on the Junior Market as 
LASM.

At listing, the company was entitled to 
remission of taxes for ten years in the propor-
tion indicated below.

Years 1 to 5:     100%

Years 6 to 10:     50%

The tax remission benefit expired on Oc-
tober 11, 2021, and since then the Company 
began paying the full corporate taxation at 
the rate of 25%.   

The company has a long history of being 
the leading producer of Nutritious Powdered 
Beverages in Jamaica (under the LASCO 
brand) and is the absolute market leader in 
this category.  Its scope was expanded in 2014 
with the entry into Bottled Water and Refresh-
ing Liquid Beverages under the iCool and Lyrix 
brands.  The ranges are made up of multiple 
formats and flavours and include low sugar 
variants.  All the brands are well accepted and 
widely distributed in the local market and are 
exported to over twenty destinations in the 
Caribbean and North America.

BUSINESS STRATEGY
Over the years, the company has focused 

on organic growth supported by heavy 
investments in plant, equipment, state-of-the-
art technology, research and development, 
people development  and strong brand and 
marketing investments to fuel growth.  

The company continues to upgrade its 
facilities and technology and has the capacity 
and flexibility to increase output for both the 
local and export markets with affordable, high 
quality and innovative nutritious and refresh-
ing solutions.

The strategy is underpinned by pro-
grammes of continuous improvement to drive 
operational efficiencies, cost management, 
organizational adaptations, and simplification 
as well as ongoing research and development 
to deliver product innovations and renova-
tions.  Focus on quality management and 
certification to international standards in the 
areas of Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP), 
Food Safety Management (HACCP) and Occu-
pational Health and Safety are key underlying 
activities of the overall strategy.

Our long-term strategy is therefore focused 
on sustained value creation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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The year had its challenges- the main ones being extraordinary cost inflation which had 
significant impact on input costs, and lingering supply chain instability which negatively 
impacted the efficiency of the operations. As in the past, however, we navigated the challenges   
and delivered solid results while we continued to invest in our long-term growth drivers. The 
performance reflects the dedication, agility, and flexibility of all our team members across the 
organization and our disciplined approach to sustained value creation. 

Gross Profit
Gross Profit reached $4.09B which was 17% above the prior 
year (prior year: $3.48B). However Gross Profit margin de-
creased by 40 basis points basis points to 36.3% (prior year:  
36.7%) as price increases were not enough to fully offset 

input cost increases.
 While incremental margin progression remains a priority, 
we decided that under the circumstance of the extraordi-
nary inflation   to complement pricing with higher levels of 
productivity savings and efficiencies.  

Selling and  
Administrative expenses

Selling and Administrative 
expenses, inclusive of marketing 
investments, were $1.48B or 14.6% 
above the prior year reflecting 
cost inflation pressures. 

Marketing investments grew by 
16% as we increased brands and 
marketing support as key growth 
drivers.  The on-going collabora-
tion with our distributor on the    
realigned approach to consumer 
communication and engagement  
continued to yield positive results 
with a much improved efficiency 
in overall marketing spend.

The overall expense to sales ratio 
was 13.2%, (against a sales growth 
of 18.6%), compared to 13.6% in 
the prior year.

Operating Profit 
Operating Profit grew to $2.69B a 21% in-
crease on the previous year with operating 
profit margin increasing by 50 basis points 
to 23.9%.  The margin growth reflects effi-
ciency gains. 

Net profit 
Net profit generated was $2.082B 
a growth of 21.9% on the prior year 
(2022: $1.707B) with net profit margin 
increasing by 50 basis points to 18.5%. 
Earnings per share increased by 21.9% 
to $0.50 (prior year: $0.41) 

Financial Position   Our balance sheet remained very healthy.

Total assets at year-end 
were $13.7B an increase 
of 14% with respect to the 
prior year.  Non-current 
assets were $5.2B up from 
$5.0B in the previous year.  
 

Current Assets increased 
by $1.54B to $8.58B led by 
inventories and cash and 
cash equivalents and short-
term investments. Inven-
tories increased by $544M 
driven by cost inflation and 
additional safety stocks 

of critical materials in the 
context of supply chain 
instability while cash and 
cash equivalents and short-
term investment combined 
totalled $3.88B. Trade and 
other receivables remained 
flat at $2.50B.     

Net Cash Flow from  
operations was $1.9B up 
24.6% from the prior year.

Shareholders’ 
Equity 
Shareholders’ Equity 
increased to $11.1B or 
18.7% over the previous 
year (2022: $9.3B) re-
flecting the strong profit 
growth for the year. As a 
result, Return on Equity 
increased to 20.4% from 
19.8% in the prior year. 

Ratios 
The Company had improvements in 
its financial ratios as follows:

• Cash ratio at 1.26x (2022: 1.16x)

• Quick Ratio to 3.62x (2022: 3.11x)

• Current Ratio to 4.84x (2022: 4.04x)

• Debt to Equity Ratio moved from 
0.04x in 2022 to 0.01x due to a 
decrease in total loans.

RESULTS 
OVERVIEW

Sales Revenue
Sales Revenue grew to $11.24B or 18.6% over 
the prior year (prior year: $9.48B).  The strong 
revenue growth reflects broad based volume 
growth and an element of pricing.  Volume 
growth was particularly strong for the water 
and refreshing beverage portfolios and was a 
continuation of the growth seen in the second 
half of the prior year when the covid pandemic 
restrictions and containment measures were 
lifted and channels catering to out of home, on-
the-go consumption and schools reopened.   

2021-22 2022-23

2021-22 2022-23

Net profit ($J B) Net profit Margin (%) Earnings per Share ($)

Total Assets ($J B) Current Assets ($J B) Current Liabilities ($J B) Working Capital ($J B)

Shareholders Equity ($J B) Return on Equity (%)

1.71 18%
0.41

12.07

7.04

1.74

5.30

9.3

19.8%

2.08 18.5%
0.50

13.74

8.58

1.77

6.81

11.1

20.4%
Selling & Admin Expenses ($J B)

1.29
1.48

Expense to Sales ratio (%)

14%
13%

Revenue ($J B) Gross Profit Margin (%)

9.48

36.7% 36.3%
3.48

11.24

4.09

Gross Profit ($J B)

23.4%
23.9%

2.22

2.69

Operating Profit 
Margin (%)

Operating Profit ($J B)
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11.24

4.09

11.1
1.48

13.2%

36.3%

20.4%

18.6%

18.5%

9.48

3.48

9.3
1.29

13.6%

36.7%

19.8%

15.4%

18.0%

8.22

3.11

7.9
1.32

16%

37.9%

18.8%

7.89

2.92

6.8

1.66 21%

37.0%

15.6%

4.2%

12.4%

4.2%

16.8%

7.57

2.68

5.8

1.42
19%

1,257.9

16.6%

1,076.8
981.7

1,379.6

1,707.5

2,081.9

1,292.4

16.4%1,815.0

22.1%
2,223.1

23.4%
2,689.2 23.9%

35.4%

20.0%

13.6%

14.2%

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-232018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-232018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

revenue ($J B)

NET PROFIT ($J M)gross profit ($J B)

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ($J B)operating expenses ($J B) operating expenses as a % of revenue (%)

operating profit ($J M) operating profit margin (%)

gross profit margin (%)

RETURN ON EQUITY (%)

revenue growth (%)

NET profit margin (%)

FIVE YEAR EVOLUTION



38 39LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED 2023 ANNUAL REPORT LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED 2023 ANNUAL REPORTManagement Discussion & Analysis Management Discussion & Analysis

155,464

18.7%

249,970

16.5%

250,746

20.9%

300,049

22.6%

413,291

23.2%

0.26
0.24

0.33

0.41

0.50

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

DIVIDENDS PAID ($J M)

return on invested capital (%)

EARNINGS PER SHARE ($J)

FIVE YEAR EVOLUTION (CONTINUED)

savings 
offering on 
LASCO Food 
drinks
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LASCO Manufacturing Limited operates 
in a complex and dynamic environment and 
understands that a robust risk management 
system is critical to the achievement of its 
strategic business objectives and purpose.  
To this end, the company adopts a risk pro-
file that is aligned to its business strategy 
to deliver sustainable value creation for 
its shareholders and other stakeholders 
through responsible growth and efficient 
use of resources, while ensuring mitigation 
of potential negative impacts of the oper-
ations on the natural environment.  Risk 
management is therefore integrated into 
every stage of the company’s operations 
and processes.  The Enterprise Risk Manage-
ment (ERM) framework is designed to iden-
tify, analyze, and mitigate risks, to minimize 
their potential impact on the business.

Our risk management activities support 
good governance and are aligned to ISO  
31000: 2009 Risk Management Principles.  
They are consistent with best practices of 
sound risk management, fully aligned with 
our business strategy and includes:

•  A clear structure of accountability, roles, 
and responsibilities, and the segregation 
of duties through the application of the 
“three lines of defence” model.

•  Close alignment of risks and explicit con-
sideration of risks into decision-making 
and performance management.

•  Holistic risk management through 
harnessing synergies of the different 
functions involved in risk management.

Assessment of risk considers both short- 
and long-term risk, including how risks are 
evolving, together with emerging areas of 
risk.

The Board of Directors has overall 
accountability for the management of risks 
and for reviewing the effectiveness of the 
company’s risk management and internal 
control systems, and therefore:

•  Sets the “tone at the top” and promotes a 
safe and sound risk culture.

•  Establishes business strategy, incorpo-

rating risk appetite and capital manage-
ment activities.

•  Approves the risk management frame-
work, policies, roles, and responsibilities.

•  Conducts quarterly reviews of key risk 
management information including 
significant risk decisions that could have 
material impact on the business and 
challenges management where appro-
priate. 

Our risk appetite statements guide the 
organization with respect to the level of risk 
we are willing to take for the eight principal 
risk categories identified from the result of 
our ongoing Enterprise Risk Assessment.  
Each risk category is assigned a qualitative 
risk appetite statement supplemented with 
key risk indicators, referenced specifically to 
our business objectives.

The ERM framework leverages robust 
on-going risk assessments and risk report-
ing as a means of focusing on the risks that 
matter most to the organization and to 
dedicate time and resources in addressing 
these risks. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE
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Below are some of the principal risks that are constantly reviewed:

RISK RISKMITIGATION MEASURES MITIGATION MEASURES
Product quality and safety Systems and Security 

Product and Packaging

Health and Safety

Talent and People engagement 

Compliance and Ethics 

Business Operations
Environmental Issues /Climate Change

The quality and safety of our prod-
ucts are of fundamental importance for 
our brands and our reputation. Failure 
in product quality and safety could 
result in serious consequences for con-
sumer safety and negatively affect the 
brand and company’s reputation.

Operations are increasingly dependent 
on Information Technology Systems 
and management of information.   
Risks of failure and threat of cyber-at-
tacks can disrupt security, reliability, 
and operational activities.

Emerging consumer trends and regula-
tory initiatives are increasingly focused 
on healthier foods, labelling, and 
packaging.

Failure to comply with health and safety 
regulations could lead to reputational 
damage to our brands and company, 
litigation, penalties, accidents, and 
injuries. 

The risk being our inability to at-
tract and retain the skills necessary 
to achieve our growth and financial 
targets in an increasingly competitive 
business environment.   

Failure to act with integrity will have 
a negative impact on our image and 
brands and could lead to litigation and 
penalties. 

Our business depends on purchasing 
materials and efficient manufacturing 
and distribution of products to market. 
Disruptions in the supply chain could 
impact our ability to ensure timely sup-
plies of materials to our manufacturing 
site, resulting in our inability to supply 
products to the market.  The cost of 
material input can significantly affect 
our product costs, which we might not 
be able to fully recover through pricing.

Regulations and legislation relative to 
the negative impacts on the environ-
ment, use of natural resources, waste 
disposal and climate change - increas-
ing stakeholder concerns.  

Key mitigation measures in place to ensure products are of high quality 
and safe include comprehensive product quality policies, processes, and 
controls to prevent contamination and other non-compliance issues.   
Processes and controls are verified regularly and are monitored through 
performance indicators. In addition, key suppliers are independently 
certified, and the quality of material received monitored to ensure that 
it meets our specifications and quality standards.

Our mitigation measures include contingencies and policies to protect 
systems and data security. Our employees are trained to understand the 
security requirements.

Our innovation and renovation activities through on-going investments 
in R&D are directed to providing healthy products and we ensure com-
pliance with regulations. 

Health and Safety Policies and Procedures are established, and we 
pursue initiatives to promote safe behaviours throughout the opera-
tions. Compliance with local health and safety regulations are rigorously 
monitored. 

We have programmes to recruit and retain talent as well as develop-
mental programmes to upskill employees for new roles and new ways 
of working.  

We have in place policies covering Corporate Governance, Code of Eth-
ics and Business Conduct and other compliance programmes that are 
well established and against which monitoring is done. 

Mitigation measures include creating multiple supply options, tempo-
rary inventory adjustments to mitigate potential stock outs, active price 
management and driving efficiency and effectiveness of the operations 
to generate savings. Efficiency and productivity are rigorously tracked 
through a suite of performance indicators that drive improvement 
initiatives.

Our impacts on the environment are constantly monitored and policies 
and procedures established to guide our practices. Waste minimiza-
tion, wastewater treatment, recycling of plastic bottles and strict water 
management are among the areas covered. We are also advancing our     
renewable (solar) energy programme and continue to pursue a range of 
eco-efficiency initiatives to reduce our carbon footprint. 

In addition, a wide range of operational performance 
indicators are reviewed to ensure that we are operating 
within the established framework and targets.  Variances 
are addressed and corrective actions taken.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Recognizing the need to maintain robust and effective 

internal control processes, the company has outsourced 

the internal audit function to Ernst & Young Services Lim-
ited, an independent Audit Service provider, which has 
the requisite skills sets.  Audit scope includes reviews of 
operational and financial performance, compliance with 
governance, internal and risk management processes.  
The Audit function reports directly to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee of the Board each quarter.
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CORPORATE OUTLOOK

The last year was another turbulent 
one in which we experienced several 
headwinds, including spiraling ma-
terial cost inflation and supply chain 
instability. Despite these constraints we 
delivered a strong set of results with 
good top line growth and operating 
profit margin improvement, reflecting 
our focus and agility and the strength 
and relevance of our brands.

We anticipate that cost pressures 
and an element of supply chain insta-
bility will persist for the medium term. 
These could be exacerbated by ongo-
ing geo-political tensions.      

Organic top-line profitable growth 
remains our top priority, fueled by 
improving operational efficiency at 
all levels of the company, strict cost 
management, continued investments 
in product Research and Development, 
and capital expenditure. In addition, we 
remain committed to continuing robust 
marketing investments in our brands 
and other long-term growth drivers, 
including our ongoing digital trans-
formation which is business led and a 
fundamental growth enabler. 

COMMITMENT, CAPACITY, AND 
FLEXIBILITY

The performance of the company 
is ultimately dependent on the com-
mitment, capacity, and flexibility of its 
human resources. We will therefore 
continue to invest in the training, 
development, and empowerment of 
our people to ensure that they have the 
skills and competencies necessary for 
an agile high-performance culture that 
is necessary to meet the challenges of 
an increasingly competitive business 
environment.

We recognize that cost pressures are 
likely to persist for some time and could 
trigger price adjustments. As we have 
done in the past years, we will find the 
right balance between these poten-
tial adjustments and savings through 
operational efficiency and productivity 
gains to maintain affordability and 

competitiveness of our brands in the 
marketplace.    

Our Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM) framework is now well developed 
and embedded. It will continue to be 
the basis for the ongoing identification 
and evaluation of emerging and other 
risks to allow for timely mitigatory 
actions to minimize potential negative 
impacts to the business.

 The ongoing collaboration with our 
Distributor to expand and deepen mar-

ket penetration to make our products 
widely and readily available in both the 
domestic and export markets is reaping 
positive results and will continue to be 
an area of focus.

The company is resilient, innovative, 
and agile - attributes that will serve us 
well in navigating the challenges that 
may emerge as we continue to focus 
on delivering consistent growth and 
enhanced shareholder value. 
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LASCO Manufacturing Limited is proud of its strong and dedicated workforce.  
Their hard work and dedication are key ingredients to the success of the LASCO 

brand and the products we manufacture. This year has been marked by resilience, 
teamwork, and a commitment to fostering a positive work environment.

LASCO Manufacturing Limited is 
proud of its strong and dedicated work-
force.  Their hard work and dedication 
are key ingredients to the success of 
the LASCO brand and the products 
we manufacture. This year has been 
marked by resilience, teamwork, and 
a commitment to fostering a positive 
work environment.

At the core of our success lies our 
people, who are the heartbeat of our 
organization. We firmly believe that 
investing in our employees’ well-being, 
growth, and development is key to 
achieving our business objectives. To 
that end, we have implemented a range 
of initiatives focused on talent manage-
ment and employee engagement. 

In keeping with our mission of 
promoting ‘Employee Development’, 
we pursued strategies aimed at realign-
ing our human performance with the 
business goals.  As such, for 2022/2023 
we sought to create a developmental 
path for members of the workforce, 
undertaking a review and mapping the 
employee competencies and critical 
skill sets required to produce and deliv-
er the company’s products and services. 

In line with our commitment to 
continuous learning, we have expand-
ed our training and development 
programs. We understand that foster-
ing a learning culture is essential for 
individual growth and organizational 
success. Staff participated in a number 
of seminars, conferences and work-
shops catering to both technical and 
soft skills development, covering critical 

HUMAN RESOURCES

areas such as Occupational Health and 
Safety, Food Science and Safety, Perfor-
mance Management and Retirement 
Planning. Through these initiatives, 
we aim to equip our employees with 
the necessary skills and knowledge to 
adapt to industry trends and emerging 
technologies.

The years ahead are filled with great 
expectation. As we move forward, our 
Human Resources Department remains 
committed to fostering a culture of 
excellence, continuous improvement, 
and employee empowerment. We will 
continue to improve our operational 
functionalities on areas and systems 
such as Time and Attendance; and 
the end-to-end understanding of all 
our policies and procedures. With this 
improvement in mind, we will increase 
efficiencies and effectiveness in our 
business processes. 

Together, we have achieved re-
markable milestones and overcome 
challenges with resilience and determi-
nation. We will continue to explore new 
avenues for development, well-being, 
and talent acquisition to drive our orga-
nization towards even greater heights. 
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The TVJ’s Schools’ Challenge Quiz is Jamaica’s premier 
academic competition geared towards encouraging grit and 
sportsmanship among our youth, which makes LASCO Food 
Drink the perfect partner.

LASCO Food Drink, is a major supporter of youth academics 
and athletics as our product contains all essential nutrients, 
including 7 grams of protein, 20% of daily requirements for 
calcium, fortified with iron along with other key vitamins and 
minerals that support brain health and muscle development. 

The overall winner: St. Jago High School and county cham-
pions – Westwood High School (Cornwall), Charlemont High 
School (Middlesex), Ardenne High School (Surrey) – were each 
gifted LASCO Food Drink and other nutritious LASCO prod-
ucts valued at JMD$100,000 to support the quiz teams as they 
continue to prepare for the next season. This contribution is 
a part of the overall $1.1 Million in cash and prizes for the top 
performing schools, team members and coaches.

SCQ BREAKFAST PROGRAMME

5K REACH TO RECOVERY PINK RUN

5K REACH TO RECOVERY PINK RUN

MARKETING HIGHLIGHTS 
Building on the foundation established by our founder and in alignment with our 

ethos, our focus remained on enhancing “Everyday Family Values” through a 
continued investment in the health, hydration, and overall nutrition of Jamaicans.

iCool, with its 50% Reduced Sugar Drink, engaged in a school tour across five schools within Kingston & St. 
Andrew to increase awareness and reinforce the message that LASCO has healthier options available for children. 
The Reduced Sugar School Tour was adequate for the brand based on the ever-present reminders by the Ministry of 
Health and the Ministry of Education regarding the guidelines to reduce students’ exposure to and consumption of 
sugar-sweetened beverages, including fruit drinks, energy drinks and sweetened water. During the tour, students 
had the opportunity to explore the LASCO iCool Reduced Sugar Station and LASCO 50% Food Drink station. Students 
engaged in hands-on experiences like interactive displays, taste tests, and educational games. 

50% REDUCED SUGAR SCHOOL TOUR

On the 30th of October 2022, LASCO iCool 
Water partnered with ICWI/Jamaica Reach to 
Recovery to host its 5K Pink Run. Decked in pink 
t-shirts, tall pink socks, and pink tutus, LASCO 
iCool Water was proud to walk and run alongside 
fellow Jamaicans raising breast cancer awareness, 
highlighting the importance of early detection, 
and promoting good health.

The iCool Water team provided support in the 
form of hydration, distributing bottles of iCool 
Water and Flavoured Water at each kilometer of 
the race, with a hydration station at the finish line 
and a cool-down pack for all participants. 

LASCO supports the ICWI/Jamaica Reach to 
Recovery Pink Run as they seek to raise funds to 
provide emotional, psychological, and financial 
support to those diagnosed with and survivors of 
breast cancer.
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CPL SPONSORSHIP

LASCO Food Drink was ap-
pointed at the Official Food Drink 
and Nutrition Sponsor of the Hero 
Caribbean Premier League (CPL) for 
the 2022-24 seasons. This multi-
year partnership takes world-class 
cricket and world-class nutrition 
from the Caribbean onto the world 
stage and reinforces the brand’s 
commitment to improving the 
health of consumers.

First started in 2013, the Hero 
CPL is a franchise-based T20 format 
cricket tournament that combines 
two of the most compelling aspects 
of Caribbean life – dramatic cricket 
and a vibrant Carnival atmosphere. 
The broadcast and digital viewer-
ship has passed 500 million in both 
2020 and 2021, making it one of 
the most watching leagues in the 
world of cricket.

On-air benefits include a virtual 
logo signage on-field, telecast 
branding and secondary permitter 
branding, amongst other branding 
efforts.

iCool Water was the hydration sponsor of the 2023 
SW ISSAC Henry Invitational Track Meet held at the 
National Stadium. Over the years, this event has done 
a fantastic job of honouring the late ISSAC Henry, 
past principal of St Andrew Technical High School. 
Members of the LASCO team lined the track with 
water stations to ensure athletes were adequately 
hydrated throughout the day. 

iCool Water was the hydration sponsor of May-
berry Investments’ All Island Swim Meet, issuing 
bottles of water to the preparatory and high school 
athletes. The brand aims to be the crisp, light and 
refreshing water of choice. 

LASCO iCool believes in investing in young 
athletes’ future and aims to offer support in any way 
possible to ensure that they operate at their best. 
Sponsoring this national swim meet has allowed us 
to witness firsthand the remarkable talent and un-
wavering determination that these young athletes 
possess. Their passion for swimming is evident in 
every stroke, every turn, and every dive. They have 
shown us the true essence of sportsmanship, resil-
ience, and the pursuit of personal bests.

ISSAC HENRY TRACK MEET

MAYBERRY INVESTMENT  
ALL ISLAND SWIM MEET

The LASCO Emerging Player prize was awarded to Barbados Royal - Ramon Simmonds Award present-
ed by CEO, Cricket West Indies - Johnny Grave.
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LASCO CHIN FOUNDATION

Sustainable Socio-Economic Intervention (SSI) Entrepreneurship Programme

LASCO Chin Foundation (LCF) resumed its Entrepreneurship programme in 2022 after 
a two-year hiatus due to the COVID-19 pandemic. We re-engaged active entrepreneurs 
who benefitted from our first phase of support as well as expanded our programme 
offerings through partnerships:  

SSI ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROGRAMME PHASE II:

WE CARE SWIFT E-SKILLS TRAINING

LCF ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT PROGRAMME FOR AT-RISK YOUTHS: 

LCF SSI YOUTH CRIME PREVENTION PROJECT: 

In May 2022 LCF re-engaged 18 entrepreneurs from 
Kingston and Clarendon, who had successfully completed 
our Phase I training and who remained active in their busi-
ness through their Phase II initiative. 

These entrepreneurs received training over six months 
that were based on their business development plans. These 
sessions addressed business development training needs, 
obtaining additional equipment, business registration, fi-
nancial literacy, budgeting, connection to LASCO’s Down the 
Trade and Microfi¬nance services and digital media platform 
training and development. Refresher sessions were also held 
on topics taught in Phase I to further assist the entrepre-
neurs in realizing their 6-months plans and growing their 
businesses. In addition, LASCO beverages were provided as 
capital injection to mitigate some of the economic hardship 
endured during the pandemic.

LCF partnered with the Caribbean Philanthropic Alliance, 
Zen Studio, Environmental Health Foundation, Trees That Feed 
Foundation, Bridge Foundation, Operation Save Jamaica, and 
the Institute of Law and Economics to roll out a Women’s Em-
powerment initiative, entitled ‘Women Entrepreneurs in the 
Caribbean…Active, Resilient & Empowered’ (WE CARE) Swift 
E-Skills Training aimed at building resilience and empowering 
women by providing entrepreneurial support. 

31 entrepreneurs from Jamaica and Trinidad & Tobago 
successfully completed the programme and were introduced 
to 21st Century skills necessary to better market themselves 
and their businesses. All participants received online and 
in-person training in audiovisual production, e-marketing, 
social media campaign development, entrepreneurship 
training, as well as in designing and implementing e-market-
ing campaigns for a corporate product “LASCO” and a new 
product “breadfruit bulla”. By the end of the training, there 
was a 23% increase in self-employment, a 29% increase in 
positive business performance, 2 entrepreneurs registered 
their business, 7 entrepreneurs created business plans, and 5 
entrepreneurs reported gaining access to credit.

LCF is partnering with USAID’s Posi-
tive Pathways Activity in Jamaica (PPAJ) 
under their “Enhancing Economic Op-
portunities’ cluster to provide a diverse 
set of economic services to parents, care-
givers, youths and community members 
from twelve vulnerable communities.

• Kingston & St. Andrew - Jones Town, 
Hannah Town, Denham Town

• St. James - Flanker, Norwood, Salt 
Spring

• St. Catherine - Naggo Head, Gregory 
Park, New Land

• Clarendon - May Pen, Effortville, 
Palmers Cross

To date the programme has trained 
603 parents and caregivers of at-risk 
youths in ‘building family-assets’ as well 
as fi¬nancial resource management and 
has trained 24 youth trainers who are 
working civil society organisations and 
training centres targeting at-risk youth, 
to deliver training addressing building 
family assets, self-employment and 
workforce development for youth.

On September 2022 LCF wrapped up its SSI Youth Crime 
Prevention project, a partnership with USAID Local Partner 
Development programme. This project provided 51 at-risk 
youths from Central Village, Trench Town, Kingston Central 
and August Town with the business knowledge and life skills 
needed to sustain livelihood and income-generating oppor-
tunities, and to become empowered, productive citizens. 
Through the project: 50 at-risk youths successfully com-
pleted entrepreneurship skills training, 48 of them received 
LASCO support in the form of barrels and/or beverages as 
part of their start-up kits for micro-sales businesses and 
22 youths were exposed to Cognitive Behavioural Therapy 
(CBT) aimed at reducing the levels of depression, anxiety 
and other mental challenges identified among the youth 
and 27 youths reported receiving alternative livelihood 
through employment.

Participant, Lorraine Williams, stands proudly in front of the establish-
ment during the LCF team’s first business site visit/assessment.

Jamaican participants pose with Prof. Rosalea Hamilton, LCF CEO, Dan-
ielle Cunningham LASCO Corporate Communications Manager, Tahirah 
Fraser, LCF Operations and Programmes Manager and Project Coordina-
tor Diana Walton following the successful completion of the Skills Training 
programme.

Family Asset Training held with parents and caregivers of Salt Spring, St. James on November 28-29, 
2022

Peer to Peer Training held with 24 youths from Kingston & St. Andrew, St. James, Clarendon and St. 
Catherine from November 28-30, 2022

From L to R: Paul Irving, Project Manager; Ella Ghartey, MNS, Natalie 
Wheatle; Local Partner Development; Danielle Cunningham, Corporate 
Communications Manager; LASCO, Jonah Williams, Entrepreneur; Prof. 
Rosalea Hamilton, CEO LCF; Tahirah Fraser, Operations and Programme 
Manager, LCF and Pastor Bruce Flecther, Operations Save Jamaica.
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Sustainable Socio-
Economic Intervention 
Schooling Support 
Programme

Our SSI Schooling Support Programme successfully 
completed its third year of operation in June 2022 with 
21 students who are enrolled in Grade 9 at Clan Carthy 
High School. At the beginning of the school year our 
students are assessed and support is provided for each 
youth according to their specific needs including: their 
vulnerability, their academic levels, their unresolved 
psychological and social issues, their parents’ levels of 
involvement, and the functionality of their homes.

To date, our students enrolled in the programme have 
seen improvements in reading, comprehension and 

 Students enrolled in our SSI Schooling Support Programme receiving certificates for completing the Youth Community Outreach Programme Music 
Summer Camp

spelling, with the ‘ability to recognize words’, and spelling 
demonstrating the sharpest increases in achievement- from 
6 to 10, and from 4 to 7, respectively. Numeracy skills exhib-
ited gradual improvement, moving from an achievement 
level of 5 to 6.

Our students’ intellectual capacities have also steadily 
improved throughout the year, indicating that the average 
student functioned at or around their age-appropriate level.

Social work and case management services were ren-
dered to our most vulnerable students. We completed 78 
home visits which yielded 67% achievement of the social 
plan objectives of the home and 6 households were assisted 
in re-registering for PATH.

Our students also benefitted from psychological inter-
ventions, gender mentorship sessions, monthly care pack-
age support for the household, life skills session focusing on 
self-concept, exposure to music, and their parents partici-
pate in parenting sessions that provides guidance regarding 
parenting styles.

Today, we continue to profile companies

that have been nominated for the

prestigious 2012 Gleaner Honour Award.

LASCO has been nominated in the category

public service.

Founder and Executive Chairman of

LASCO Affiliated Companies,

Lascelles Chin, did not go into

business only to make huge sums of money

in profit, but, instead, part of his mantra is

set on giving back to the public to help

better the quality of society.

As a result, millions of dollars is pumped

into various social programmes yearly of

which several lives have been touched and

services improved.
“Having grown up in Jamaica and having

started a business, I think that some of the

profits that we make need to go back in the

country, because not everybody is capable

of managing. So the more we get successful

is the more we are going to spend on social

programmes,” the entrepreneur explained

to The Gleaner in an interview recently in

his Red Hills Road-based office.

Chin has been doing good on his promise

so far, with LASCO being highly involved

in sponsorships of events, partnerships with

key sectors to address critical issues and its

signature event of honouring persons doing

well in some critical professions.

Cops, teachers, principals and nurses

who top their fields are raised to fame with

much publicity, winning thousands of

dollars in cash and prizes after offering

exemplary service.

MONEY WELL SPENT

For the LASCO boss, the $250 million

spent on the programme over 12 years is

considered money well spent by his group

of companies.
“We started the Teacher of the Year

competition because a lot of persons were

complaining that the teachers were really

not as good as before and we tried to help

and it is working to bring about

improvement so far,” he said. “They are all

motivated to teach better because unless

they get involved in good teaching and

good community service they won’t be

chosen and they regard the position as an

honour.”
Chin added that the Nurse of the Year

competition started as a way to give the

professionals the opportunity to get the

attention they so deserve and so far it is

meeting its objectives.

But for the police competition, Chin said

the police were oftentimes lambasted by

many citizens who sometimes were more

interested in supporting the wrongdoings,

which resulted in some members

demotivated, confused and quite

disorganised.
Hence he said he opted to help in finding

a way to rescue the profession.

He said, “It really encouraged the police

to be better professionals because there are

a lot of criteria and the judging is based on

good attributes and their involvement in the

community.
“It is working because all the Top Cops

turned out to be fantastic persons, they

really helped the community and it so

happened that the Top Cops were so good

that they got promotion after.”

Chin added that the company also hosts

training sessions with the targeted groups,

which are used to improve the quality

service they offer.
Pherone Griffiths, recipient of the teacher

of the Year award for 2010-2011, praised

the organisation for its contribution to

education.

“It is a great achievement and it helped me

in terms of my professional development.

LASCO has been doing a tremendous job in

bridging the gap between the private and

public sectors which is good to improve the

education standards,” he said.

Chin, who was upbeat about the

company’s contribution to society, added,

“We have done a lot of social programmes.

We sponsored Olympics; we developed a

lot of athletes, sponsored cricket, football

and netball.”
The company, which offers affordable

prices to the public in food products,

personal care items and pharmaceuticals, is

also big on education, as it continues to

sponsor a number of programmes in

educational institutions.

The most recent is its partnership with

Rootz for an environmental awareness

programme in schools across the island.

For this, LASCO is spending $6 million for

a tree-planting exercise, which will see 50

primary schools benefiting from the pilot

programme which started in August.

Chin stated that LASCO continues to

support Collins Close Basic in White Hall

Avenue, St Andrew, and Gwen Neil

Memorial Basic Schools in Spanish Town,

St Catherine, by providing warm meals

through its breakfast programme. It also

sponsors TVJ’s Schools’ Challenge Quiz

and The Gleaner’s annual Spelling Bee

Competition.
Regina Hanson, principal of Collins

Close Basic School, said the close to 80

students at the institution have been

benefiting from the breakfast programme

and it is making a difference at the school.

“LASCO is a lifesaver. There are a

number of needy persons in the community

and before the breakfast programme there

was only a bag juice for breakfast or they

ate nothing at all and so it affected their

learning,” she said.
The first-born baby for each year at the

Victoria Jubilee Hospital, University

Hospital of the West Indies and Spanish

Town Hospital would not be left out as the

mothers would be presented with goodies at

their bedsides courtesy of the company.

It doesn’t stop there as LASCO is now

partnering with JEEP by contributing a

large sum of money to help retrain the Rio

Cobre in St Catherine.
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Cops, teachers, principals and nurses

who top their fields are raised to fame

with much publicity. For the LASCO

boss, the $250 million spent on the

programme  is money well spent.

Having grown up in

Jamaica and having s

tarted a business, I

think that some of the

profits that we make

need to go back in the

country, because not

everybody is capable of

managing. So the more

we get successful is the

more we are going to

spend on social
programmes.

� LASCO group of

companies, which

comprises several

businesses such as

manufacturing,
packaging and
distribution, started in

1988 in island’s capital

Kingston.

� LASCO is a major

employer of labour

contributing
substantially to the

island’s Gross Domestic

Product by its
production, distribution

and exports. 

� LASCO drives
profitability through

innovation, efficiency

and the delivery of

quality customer
service, in order to

maximize value to all

stakeholders.

� LASCO has a
remittance service with

40 locations islandwide.

WINSTON SILL/FREELANCE PHOTOGRAPHER

Lasco’s Lascelles Chin

RUDOLPH BROWN/PHOTOGRAPHER

Lascelles Chin (left), chairman of LASCO Affiliated Companies, and Police

Commissioner Owen Ellington (centre) present the LASCO Police Officer of

the Year trophy to Corporal Oneil Patterson during the LASCO Police Officer

of the Year 2012-2013 awards ceremony at The Jamaica Pegasus hotel in

October Last year.

COLIN HAMILTON

Lascelles Chin and his wife Dr Eileen Chin raise a toast at an event last year.

The entrepreneur said this is urgent as

the silt could clog the port which would

cost the Government millions of dollars

to clear.
The company’s head signalled that

there is no giving up for LASCO

anytime soon. Big on the agenda is an

expansion of the social programmes as

the profit of the company continues to

climb.
“With the building of two new

additional factories the expected

increase in revenues will help the

company to undertake more social

programmes to help some needy

children. The economy over the world

is getting worse and poor people are

going to suffer and so we have to help,”

he argued.
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Nurse of the Year
The Nurses Association of Jamaica 

celebrated 75 years of service with the 
return of in-person activities to com-
memorate International Nurses Day on 
May 12, 2022, Nurses Week during July 
17 – 22, 2022 and the much-anticipated 
LASCO Nurse of the Year and Student 
Nurse of the Year Awards Ceremony 
which was held at the Jamaica Peg-
asus on July 22, 2022. All celebratory 
activities commenced under the theme, 
Nurses: A voice to lead - Invest in nurs-
ing and respect rights to secure global 
health. 

The coveted awards of LASCO/NOY 
and SNOY went to Alicia Adamson, 
Nurses Manager at Victoria Jubilee Hos-
pital as LASCO Nurse of the Year 2022-
2023 and La-Daniel Campbell, a nursing 
student at Brown’s Town Community 
College as LASCO Student Nurse of the 
Year 2022-2023, for their well-earned 
achievements. Their council and ded-
ication emulate our mission to bring 
“Everyday Family Values” into Jamaican 
homes and lives. Nurse Adamson was 
awarded with the LASCO NOY trophy 
and a $200,000 cash prize in addition to 
other gifts while Student Nurse Camp-
bell received $100,000 in prize money 
along with a trophy and a gift basket. 

As a commitment to ensuring that 

the awardees of the LASCO Nurse and 
Student Nurse of the Year make their 
mark in community service, LASCO Chin 
Foundation supports their selected 
projects throughout the year. The annu-
al Orange Day Walk, held on November 
26, 2022 at the Percy Junor Hospital, is 
one such activity which brings people 
together to walk in support of stopping 
violence against women and children. 
The participants and volunteers as 
always were hydrated with iCool Water 
on their purposeful walk. The LASCO 
Nurse of the Year also leads the an-

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Kingston Gleaner, December 11, 1998,Pg. 17, Kingston, Kingston, JMhttps://newspaperarchive.com/kingston-gleaner-dec-11-1998-p-17/

nual Easter Bunny Treat which is held 
at a selected school at which the NAJ 
supports. On April 9, 2022, over one 
hundred students of the Bull Bay Prima-
ry and Infant School received a boost 
of fun and treats ahead of the Easter 
holidays from the Nurses Association of 
Jamaica (NAJ) and LASCO Chin Foun-
dation. The initiative saw a combined 
team of over 25 persons engaged in 
face painting activities, motivational 
talks, games and special treats courtesy 
of LASCO. 

The LASCO 
teacher of 
the year 
award 
BEGAN in 
1997.

Outstanding Educators
The LASCO Chin Foundation, the Ministry of Education and 

Youth (MoEY) and the Jamaica Teaching Council (JTC) hon-
oured outstanding educators on Friday February 3, 2023. Nine 
extraordinary men and women were selected as finalists for 
the LASCO/MoEY/JTC 2022 Principal and Teacher of the Year 
Awards.

Overall 130 Educators were recognized and awarded for 
their outstanding work and contribution to the profession. In 
line with this year’s theme “Embracing Excellence in a Chang-
ing Environment”, LASCO continues to embrace its calling as a 
key investor in the social and economic fabric of Jamaica.

Inspired by their drive to innovate and adapt in a constantly 
evolving learning environment the finalists, selected from six 
regions holding positions as teachers, principals and teachers 
in Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) were 
as follows: 

•	 Jody Brown, Morant Bay Primary; Patrice Graham Kelly, Syd-
ney Pagon STEM Academy; and Suzan Hart, George Headley 
Primary nominated in the Teachers category. 

•	Dwayne Mulgrave, Discovery Bay High; Cheryl Grant-Mitch-
ell, Anchovy Primary;  and George Goode, Old Harbour 
Primary nominated in the Principals category. 
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•	Gina Mullings, St. Catherine High; Nyokia Sewell Powell, 
Troy High; and Sasha Pennicooke, Horace Clarke High 
emerged as nominees in the Technical and Vocational 
Education and Training (TVET) category.  
The emerging winners in each categories were, Jody 

Brown as Teacher of the Year, Dwayne Mulgrave as Principal of 
the Year and Gina Mullings as TVET Teacher of the Year. Each 
winner received $100,000 in cash along with a trophy and 
other gifts from LASCO. 

Releaf Environmental Awareness Program
The LASCO Releaf Environmental Awareness Program 

(R.E.A.P.) was officially launched on October 7, 2022 at Priory 
Primary in St. Ann, a previous winner of the competition. 
Launch events also took place at schools which had previous-
ly participated in and won top awards in the R.E.A.P. program 
in the past: St. Jago Cathedral Preparatory, Highgate Primary, 
Louise Bennet Primary, and Kendell Primary and Kindergar-
ten. LASCO nourished the students with hearty breakfast 
meals and supplied hydration beverages for the day of activi-
ties at each location. 

LASCO R.E.A.P. garnered 41 participating schools for this 
year’s competition which are scheduled to be judged in April 
2023 with the formal awards ceremony to take place in June 
2023 awarding the schools that come out on top for the most 
trees planted, the most bottles collected and the best sustain-
able vegetable garden. During the assessment period, interme-
diate prizes were given to schools for the best art pieces, songs, 
poems, essays and fashion created from waste, describing the 
environment. The winners of these sectional competitions will 
receive tablets to enhance their learning platform.  

As a part of LASCO’s Corporate Social Responsibility, our 
participation in the annual SIGMA Corporate Run on February 
12, 2023, translated to our corporate support to their bene-
ficiaries, the University Hospital of the West Indies Paediatric 
Unit and the Edna Manley College of the Visual and Perform-
ing Arts Hope Brooks building. LASCO entered a team of over 
200 persons to a financial contribution of $240,000. 

LASCO’s adopted school, Gwen Neil Basic School in Central 
Village, received our continued support throughout the year 
for special occasions celebrating the children and staff includ-
ing their annual Christmas treat, their graduation ceremony, 
activities during Child’s Month and Teacher’s Day and of 
course the nutrition program put in place for each semester 
to provide healthy food options for the children at an annual 
value of $180,000.

JCS/Men’s Health Fair
In May 2023 LASCO partnered with The Jamaica 

Cancer Society St. Ann and St. Mary Branch in stag-
ing the second  Men’s Health Fair at the Turtle River 
Park in Ocho Rios, St. Ann. The health fair is part of an 
initiative to bring greater awareness to men’s health 
issues. The event was a resounding success with male 
patrons benefiting from prostate screening, diagnosis 
and several other medical tests free of cost.  LASCO 
provided hydration for all visitors with iCool Water and 
Flavoured Water.

SIGMA Corporate Run
LASCO participated in the annual SIGMA Corporate 

Run held on February 12, 2023, with a team num-
bering over 200 people. Our financial contribution 
of $240,000 supported their beneficiaries - the Edna 
Manley College of the Visual and Performing Arts’ 
Hope Brooks building and the University Hospital of 
the West Indies’ Paediatric Unit. 
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Billion-dollar plant 
upgrade for LASCO
LASCO MANUFACTURING 

Limited (LML) will invest up 

to USS 11 million (J$943 mil­

lion) in a factory upgrade that will 

enable it to nearly double sales by 

2014. management at the public 

company stated last Thursday at a 

forum.
The investm ent w ill increase 

capac ity  at its W hite M arl, St 

Catherine factory by 70 per cent 

enabling it to launch new product 

lines.
LASCO Manufacturing is one 

of three divisions of the LASCO 

Group which listed last year on 

the Jun io r S tock E xchange. It 

packages pow dered w hole and 

skimmed milk, as well as manu­

factures a variety o f soy-based 

products.

NEW PRODUCTS

“LASCO Manufacturing will be 

embarking on a very large expan­

sion ... the size of the investment 

is expected to be USS IO-11 mil­

lion,” said Lascelles Chin chair­

man of LML, while addressing the 

m onth ly  M ayberry  Investo rs 

Forum in Kingston last Thursday.

“The expansion will not only 

see increases in productivity and 

efficiency, but also the addition of 

new products -  up to IO product 

lines.”
This expansion will add 70/XX) 

square feet to the existing 100,000 

square feet at White Marl, Chin 

stated.
“ We hope to  f in ish  the firs t

FILE

Lascelles Chin, founder and 

chairman of the LASCO 

Group of Companies.

phase o f  exp an sio n  by A pril 

2012,” said Chin, adding that they 

will introduce new products for 

global export.
“We will be exporting to many 

new territories including African

countries and we already started 

exporting to Oman.”

Chin reasoned that the invest­

ment was sound.
“Why spend so much money at 

this time? We are conservative in 

our investm en ts when d ea ling  

with your money. We are positive 

of the future for LASCO,” he said 

“ LML will nearly double sales 

in (the] next two to three years.” 

This revenue fo recast w ould 

equate to J$6 billion by 2014.

DEBT FREE

Lasco's land and building has a 

$114.3 million net book value as 

at March 2011. which represents 

LM L's 50 per cent share in the 

property held in trust by a related 

com pany, its financia ls  sta ted . 

Additionally, its m achinery and 

equipm ent has a J$40.9 million 

net book value.
The expansion at W hite Marl 

would be financed by cash flow 

and debt, Lascelles said.

LML held JS217.5 m illion in 

cash and equivalents at its march 

year end. The com pany is debt 

free with long-term liabilities list­

ed at nil.
LML recorded J$40l.2  million 

in net p ro fit or a 265 per cent 

increase over year-earlier levels. It 

b en e fited  from  a 15 per cent 

increase in revenues and reduction 

in expenses, company representa­

tives said on Thursday.

steveiujarfcjum (a. giea nerjm . corn

LIME to enter business 
of‘physical’ security

Pitches plan at ‘cloud’forum
Marcella Scarlett
Business Reporter

LIME, A regional provider o f telecoms services, says 

that it plans to leverage its technologies and partner 

with security companies to help regional firms moni­

tor and protect their physical infrastructure.

According to lan Galt. LIME's managing director 

for customer solutions, the new business line has 

been rolled out in Trinidad and Tobago, where Galt 

said that state-owned telecoms company in which 

LIME is a 49 per cent stakeholder is, after 15 

months, the leader at that top-end of the security 

market.
But it was not clear when the service will be rolled 

out in other markets and Jamaica, where LIME has 

bled red ink profusely in recent years — it lost J$6 

billion in 2010 and carries accumulated deficits of 

JS 13 billion on its balance sheet.

In Jamaica last week where he pitched cloud-computing 

solutions to the market, Galt told Sunday Business that 

the physical security-monitoring service was definitely 

in the pipeline.

INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS

“We are looking to bring very innovative niche 

products to the market that, quite frankly, our com­

petitors may be talking about but are not in a position 

I to deliver]," Galt said in reference to the proposed 

service.
“ It is not pie in the sky. it is not a wish list. We are 

doing it today (in Trinidad).”

Explaining the rationale for the new business line, 

he highlighted the increasing need for firms to be con­

scious of the security of their operations — not just 

data, but also “their critical infrastructure” .

“Whether it is CCTV cameras on the road, cameras 

in banks, etc, that is an expensive proposition.” he 

said.
But installing these systems it is not the end of the

Ian Galt. LIME managing director of customer 

solutions.

spending for the company, he explained. They have to 

manage it and have the capacity to respond to threats. 

Galt likened this to a company “almost having a

PLEASE SEE LIME, C3

BUSINESS EVENTS
JUNE 21
Stocks and Securities Limited hosts 

investors briefing on AMG 

Packaging and Paper Company 

Limited, at Terra Nova All-Suite 

Hotel. Waterloo Road. Kingston, IO 

am .
info@sslinvest.com

Jamaica Chamber of Commerce 

monthly board of directors’ 

meeting, Knutsford Court Hotel, 

Ruthven Road, Kingston,

1:30 p.m.
adminassistant@jamaieacham-

ber.org.jm

Pan-Jamaican Investment Trust 

Limited annual general meeting, at 

the Pan Caribbean Building. 12th 

Floor, Knutsford Boulevard. New 

Kingston, 2:30 p m.

Jamaica National Building Society 

Florida office hosts mortgage and 

investment forum, at Comfort Inn, 

West Palm Beach, 6:30 p.m. 

kclarke@jnhs.com

JUNE 22
Access Financial Services Limited 

annual general meeting at 

Knutsford Court Hotel, Ruthven 

Road, Kingston, 2 p.rn

The Jamaican Foundation for 

Lifelong Learning's opening and 

dedication ceremony for 

Adult Education Centre, at 124 East 

Street, Kingston, 2 p.m. 

m arketing@ jfll4i0v.jm

JUNE 23
Supreme Ventures Limited annual 

general meeting, Wyndham 

Kingston hotel, Knutsford 

Boulevard. New Kingston, IO a m.

First Jamaica Investments Limited 

annual general meeting and extra­

ordinary general meeting, at Terra 

Nova All-Suite Hotel, Waterier 

Road. Kingston, 2 p.m.

Jamaica National Building Society 

Florida office hosts mortgage and 

investment forum, at Hampton Inn, 

Altamonte Springs, 6:30 p.m. 

kclarke@jnbs.com

The 29th Caribbean Conference of 

Accountants, at The Jamaica 

Pegasus hotel. New Kingston, June

23-25.
puhrelations@cwjaniaica.com

JUNE 24
Media clinic on coverage of 

32nd CARICOM Summit, via 

videoconference, broadcast 

1:30 p m in Jamaica; 2:30 p.m. 

Eastern Caribbean time; 3:30 p.m. 

Suriname time. 
carLsec3@caricom.org

JUNE 26
VMBS Marriage & the Family 

Series, ‘The Traditional Home in a 

Contemporary World , June 26-27, 

at Emancipation Park.

New Kingston, 5:30 p.m.

Stepheii ala v idson @ vmbs.com

JUNE 27
Kingston Wharves Limited annual 

general meeting, at Jamaica 

Conference Centre, Port Royal 

Street, Kingston, IO a m.

■ Email entries to: 
busin ess (a), glea nerjm. com

You can join CAW J (Communications & other Workers of Jamaica) Co-op Credit Union 

if you work in a company that uses telephone serv ic eJoin and open a SAYE Plan today

Head Office:
51 Half Way Tree Road, Kingston IO 

Contact (All Branches):

Tel: 936-38001 Fax 929-8118 

Website www cwjcu.com 

Email cwjcu@>cwjamaica com

Branch Locations:
• KINGSTON 51 Half Way Tree Road 

9 East Parade

Marine & Allied - 4 Fourth St. New Port West

• CLARENDON MAY PEN - 2 Main Street •

JAMALCO. Halse Hall

• MANDEVILLE • ST ANN'S BAY 

Leaders Plaza, 11 King Street 

Main Street

LIONEL TOWN - Bustamante Drive 

KELLITS - Main Street

MONTEGO RAY 

1 King Street

C & W J
iC O M m m ta r m s  I  ottm  w o r m s  at ja m a ica ) 

Co-operative Credit Union Ud.

Save any amount 
you can afford monthly

Save from one to ten years 
and watch it Grow...

You get attractive interest rate on your savings, 

plus Free reducing term life insurance to cover 

your savings goal, up to $5,000,000.

presents

The
c  AVPJL JL I
(SAVE AS YOU EARN)

Helping you create
fU ajv
e  wealth

“Because my PanCaribbeanBank 

Debit Card is there when I need if

I 888-CALL PAN

We keep pace with you.
24 hr access to your account via MuMink 

• Accepted islandwide 
Flexible account Unking options

Pan  C aribbeanB ank
Advantage: you

WWW.gopancaribbean.com A member of the Sagicor Group A member ot JDC

Equipment & Installation for 

vehicle tracking systems
* C o n d itio n< App ly

i j p ^ i k 9
VUU 8f6 OWW St nil it-

29-3299

Kingston Gleaner, June 19, 2011,Pg. 27, Kingston, Kingston, JM
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2011: LASCO’S 
UPGRADES WILL 
ENABLE FACTORY 
TO NEARLY DOUBLE 
SALES BY 2014... 
AND TO LAUNCH NEW 
PRODUCT LINES.

AUDITED 
FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS
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 
 



 

 

         
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
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    
   
    
    
   
    
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   
    
   
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
–
   

   

   
   
  
   
  
    





LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

31 March 2023

Statement of Financial Position
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 










       
    
     $’000$’$’’000$’000



      


      
      

      


     

       



      
      
      

      


     


      















 






 

 
      
         
  ’000 ’000

   

   
–    
   
    

   
    
   
    

   
   
   
   
   
’  
   
   
   
  
   

   
   
    
   
  

  
  
  
   

   
   
    
  
   
 
   
   
  
   
    



  



LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity
LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Cash Flows
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






 

 

 


 

             



 

            



 
 
 

tes (‘the functional currency’).
           
y’s functiona

 
 

  





  


         
         

            


            
           
       mpany’    
     nt’s      

           


         



           




















 

 


 (CONT’D)


  (cont’d)


         
(cont’d)


Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Propert   ’  
          
 
            






     


   ‘ ’    –    

 e ’10 per cent test’ for derecognition of financial liabilit – 

           
r or lender on the other’s behalf. 


   ‘’        








          



            
     






    ‘Presentat   nts’,  
          
          



he ‘settt’ of a lia





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









 

 

 (CONT’D)

  (cont’d)


          
(cont’d)


    ‘   ’ 
   IAS 8, ‘Acco     
 rrors’, (ef         
         
           



            


    ‘ ’    

            
   
           
         
            


 


 





          



          
           




 

           
         








 














 (CONT’


 ’


      set’s carry     

              

            




             




         
       
      
        
         
       


 

 

          
          
            







 


                  



    
      

     
      








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













 (CONT’D)


 (cont’d)

    


              



 


           

           






            
            
             



 



       

        
            











           
 “effective interest rate”        
         



          



















 (CONT’D)


 


          
          
            
           
asset’s net sellin
            



  

  
  


           
             



 


       
          
             
company’s liability for c




           
            
            
            
     
             










 









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













 (CONT’D)


 

 



employees’ contrib   of salary and employer’s co  
          




 

           

 the company’s stock      
           



 








 


employees’
          

           
              
    



             




           
         


        
          
         





















 NT’D)


 


       




 


           
        







           

            
      
           

          



The company’s
         



 
            





          
          

             
         
         
         
          


 
 ’s fina       
         




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
 
















 CONT’D)

 
 ’d)


(cont’


 


           
–

            
           
           



          

–

    –   



 


        
        



           


           










The company’s financial liabi        

            













 












 (CONT’D)


 


            

entity’s Chief Ope



            



 


     



 

  


  

 ’s shareholders   

ny’s  
’s shareholders.  In the case



 



 


 
 

            
           




 


            
           
           
              






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



 












 (CONT’D)


 


             

         
   


 

     
’s 


          

         
          



 


           
 


 mpany’s 


     e company’s acco    




 


   


             


 


         ’s financial 


               





















 MATES (CONT’D)


 ’


 (cont’d)


’s financial and
           
         
           
‘fair valu 


         




           
          



            

 







           


             








           
           
           
         
    



 




    
 

          



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
















 STIMATES (CONT’D)


 ’


 


            

           


          



 


           
       


            


     



 







           







 





 
 
 
 
 






     





 

 


 (CONT’


’


       ribes the company’s objec  
            
           


        any’s exposure to financial instrument 
            


 


          



 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 



  
 
    
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’


    
    
    
    

    




         
         
 
 $’000$’000


   
  
   
 
   


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










 

 

 NT’D)


 


       tion of the company’s risk 
         

       o the company’s finance 
          
            
ompany’s i





        



 


           

           
          









          

       
          





y’s

       
      $’0 $’000

   
   
   
  
 

   








 

 

 T’D)


 ’d)
   

 ont’d)




          
           
 ’s as      
        
        
        
––




         
         
     
     
     
       ’00   $’000 
    

     
      





           

            
            


   –            
–
           





             


    







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







 

 

 NT’D)


 ’


 (cont’d)


’



          



          
any’s 
           
          
company’s borro








             
–
        
         



 


              
            
          




nsactions in respect of the company’s primary operations are do
  





            
















 

 

 (CONT’D)


 ont’d)


 (cont’d)




           




       
     ’00$’000

   
   
   


  




       
     $’000$’0

   
  
 
   

             
           


           
           
    



 

 


    
          
 







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90 91LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED 2023 ANNUAL REPORT LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED 2023 ANNUAL REPORTAudited financial statements Audited financial statements







 

 

 (CONT’D)


 nt’d)

           
 ’




 company’s liq        


 
      




 
 




the company’s financial 



          
         
       $’000 ’$’000$’000
   

    
     


     


          
         
       $’000 $’0’000$’000

   

     
      
     
 

     


   















 

 


 ONT’


 


 mpany’         pany’s 


          
ockholders’ e


           
           



 


     company’s      




  
   
  $’0


   
 


 
   
  $’000 



   

 
       

           
     


            

          
           




 
          



 






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









 

 

 

          



 
         
        ’000’00

 
   
   
   

  

 

 
         
        ’’

    
s’ fees   
 s’ rem   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   
   
   
    
   
  
   

 
   

  
 

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



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
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





 

 


 


$’00 $’


   
Directors’ r   
   
   
  
  
  


–


kers’ staff co


 
         
        ’000 ’000
 
   

 


 



         
  $’000$’00
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   
 
  








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















 ’


 



         
  ’0$’00

    
   

   
 
    
   
   
 

  


 


ny’s shares we

          


 
 


 






 
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        
        ’’0
 

 
   
  


   

  

  
        ’’0



  


 –

 

  
  
 

rs’
  

  
 


 


 –


   
 
  

   

  

  


–
   








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










 AND BALANCES (CONT’D)


nt’d
        
        ’0’0


(cont’–
  

  

  
   







’  

 



–



 
 

 ’000’000

  
  


  


            
–



 



 

 ’000’000


  
  
  
 
  

  


















 
  
 $’000 $’000
 
 

 –
–
  

 

 


 








              


          
           ‘

  

   
 $’ $’0
 
   
   

   
 



           


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           ‘000

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


           









 (CONT’D)

 ’d)


 (cont’


 
 $’000 $’0

 
    

  


  





            





              


          
           ‘

  


   
 $’000 $’000
 
   

  

  


 

 

           

              
           

        




















 ’D)

 t’d)


 d (cont’d):




   $’0


  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  


 


  
 $’ ’00


  
  

  


 

              

           
 


 







      


  
 ’000 $’000

  









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
           















 (CONT’

 
  
 $’00 $’00

 
   
  
 
   

 

  
 ’ $’00

 
  
  
  
  

  

 

  
 $’000 $’000

 
  
  
  
  

  

 
 
 $’0 $’000


   
   

  

  

  















  













 T’D)


   







 


         
  rtgagor’s         
Folio 796 (“Whrl”) in the 


 




 ’s

mortgagor’s i          
           
         
            
            




 

 




  



  















LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements
LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements
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















  
         
        ’00 ’0

   
  
   
   
  
         
        ’ ’000


  
  

              


         


   
 

           



            

       



 


             



              

t’s intent


 

 he company’s ban        

–










LASCO MANUFACTURING LIMITED

31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

FORM OF PROXY

I/We______________________________________________________________________________

of ________________________________________________________________________________

being a Member/Members of the above-named Company, hereby appoint _____________________

of ________________________________________________________________________________

or failing him/her, ___________________________________________________________________

of ________________________________________________________________________________

as my/our proxy to vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 

be held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023 at 11:00am, in the Montego Bay Suite Room at the Jamaica 

Pegasus Hotel, 81 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5 adjournment thereof.

Signed this _______________ day of   ____________________2023

Signature: ______________________________________

POSTAGE STAMP

NOTES:	

1. When completed, this form must be received by the Registrar of the Company at the address given below, not less 
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.  

2. The Proxy Form should bear stamp duty of $100.00 which may be adhesive and duly cancelled by the person 
signing the proxy form.

3. If the appointer is a Corporation, this Form of Proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of 
an officer or attorney duly authorized in writing. 

The Registrar and Transfer Agent
Jamaica Central Securities Depository
40 Harbour Street
Kingston
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